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4 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Shi Kancheng, Chairman
FE I

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (“Zhong An” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (the “period
under review”).

REVIEW OF RESULTS

During the period under review, the Group’s turnover was RMB1,601.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately 49.5% as compared
with that for 2017; gross profit was approximately RMB553.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 17.9% as compared with that for
2017. The unaudited profit for the period under review was approximately
RMB95.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately 82.7% as
compared with that for 2017. The unaudited earnings per share was
RMBO0.01 (earnings per share of corresponding period in 2017: RMBO0.09).
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not recommend
the payment of interim dividend for the period under review (2017: nil).
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MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first half of 2018, real estate regulations and control policies were
further strengthened across the country, and local regulatory policies were
intensively introduced in different places, which resulted in a continuous
expansion of the intensity and scope of the property market. On the
one hand, the government actively suppressed irrational demands and
deepened differentiation control; on the other hand, its focus was on
adjusting the medium-and long-term supply structure, emphasizing
the expansion and implementation of “effective supply” and reconciling
mismatched demand and supply. Improving the housing supply system
and promoting the supply-side reform of the real estate industry have
become the keys to accelerating the reform and establishing a long-term
mechanism for the housing system. A dual-track system within the housing
supply system is gradually being formed to enable simultaneous property
leasing and purchases.

In view of the ever-changing market conditions, the Group adhered
to its prudent and stable business approach, holding its focus on the
Yangtze River Delta Region while carrying out stable and orderly entries
into cities such as Kunming, Xi’an and Wuhan and the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Bay Area. The Group timely adopted operational and sales
strategy, which matched the market situation and launched products of
high cost performance catering for end users and upgrading demand,
attaining satisfactory results.

During the period under review, the Group had 21 newly launched projects
for sale or existing projects being sold in phases and 13 projects under
construction and in planning stage. Most are located in 6 cities of the
Yangtze River Delta Region and overall sales results was basically in line
with our expectations. During the period under review, the Group recorded
contracted sales of approximately RMB3,471.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 18% as compared to the corresponding period
in2017.

In respect of hotel operation, during the period under review, the Holiday
Inn of the Group in Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou was operating smoothly,
occupancy rate remained stable and sales revenue rose steadily. Apart
from this, the Qiandao Lake Bright Resort Hotel and Huaibei Bright Hotel
of the Group, both of which started business in 2017, were also operating
smoothly with growing occupancy rates and gradually increasing sales
revenue.
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6 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Chairman’s Statement

EFE®|E

L o EEELL o AU

Zhong An e Onshore Blue Mountain ® Hangzhou

The Group’s revenue from property leasing mainly generated from
Highlong Plaza and Hidden Dragon Bay (both located in Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou), Zhong An Yin Tai Cheng in Yuyao, Ningbo, and
other locations. The occupancy rate of Highlong Plaza exceeded 97%
after its renovation. Highlong Plaza also implemented the elements of
differentiation and experience and the commercial elements with the
theme, “Happy Time”, for children’s catering, life and services. The
Group’s Zhong An Yin Tai Cheng project, located in Yuyao, Ningbo, was
successfully leased out and business was launched at the end of 2017,
which played an important role in the rapid increase of the Group’s revenue
from the property leasing segment.

During the period under review, the Company’s income from property
management fee increased by 86.9% as compared to the same period in
2017, which will continue to provide stable cash flow for the Group.

PRUDENT REPLENISHMENT OF LAND
BANK

To maintain a healthy financial condition, the Group persistently
implements a prudent land replenishment strategy of acquiring high quality
land which meets market demand at low cost, optimizing the structure of
its land bank.

In January 2018, the Group, by way of equity transfer, acquired
20% interest of a parcel of land in Lin’an District, Hangzhou City at a
consideration of RMB233.8 million. The land parcel covers a floor area of
59,600 sqg. m. and is for residential use.

On 12 February 2018, by way of public auction, the Group, through its
subsidiary, China New City Commercial Development Limited (“CNC”),
acquired a parcel of land in Tuankou Town, Lin’an City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC with a floor area of 37,500 sg. m., at a total consideration of
approximately RMB39.00 million, as a site for hotel.
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On 18 March 2018, by way of equity acquisition, the Company, through
a non-wholly owned subsidiary, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with an independent third party to obtain the land use right of a parcel of
land in Yuhang District, Hangzhou City with a site area of 112,894 sq. m.,
at a total consideration of approximately RMB360 million, for commercial
and residential use.

On 28 April 2018, the Company successfully acquired a parcel of land
located in Luwan Village, Lishui City, Zhejiang Province by way of public
auction, at a consideration of approximately RMB1,364 million. The total
area of the land parcel is 115,890 sqg. m. and is for residential use.

On 16 May 2018, by way of equity transfer, the Group, through CNC,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with an independent third party,
to obtain the land use right of a state-owned land parcel in Xincheng
District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu with a total floor area of 154,890 sg. m., at a total
consideration of RMB204 million (including a refundable performance bond
of RMB60 million), and is for commercial use.

As of 30 June 2018, the Group had a land bank of approximately 7.626
million sg. m., which is mainly distributed among 6 cities in the Yangtze
River Delta Region. The land bank is expected to support the development
in the next five years.
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8 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Chairman’s Statement

EFE®|E

OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY

Looking forward to the second half of 2018, the phased intensification
of a China-United State trade war may become a normal state, external
demand will decline, and China’s macro economy will bear certain
pressure. However, with the continuous deepening of real estate policies
such as city-specific regulatory policies and short-term regulation and
control and the continuous strengthening of supervision, the real estate
market will gradually return to rationality. It is expected that the sales
volume of commercial housing in China will fall to a certain extent in the
second half of 2018. Benefiting from the improvement in the overall supply-
and-demand balance, sales prices will be stable.

The Group will maintain a short-term prudential and long-term optimistic
view, proactively seize market opportunities and adjust investment,
marketing and development strategies and product mix to maintain
sustainable development of the Group so as to bring satisfactory returns to
our shareholders. The Group will continue to promote its business model
of ‘acquiring land and selling products at a fair price; developing projects
and receiving sales proceeds in a quick process’. It will mainly develop
quick-sale products targeting end-users, while also developing high value-
added, low-density residential units, in order to accelerate asset turnover.
The Group will continue leveraging its strong brand name in the Yangtze
River Delta Region and optimizing marketing strategy with active marketing
as the dominant mode for additional rapid sales growth.

The Yangtze River Delta city cluster forms an important intersection area
between “One Belt One Road” and the Yangtze River economic belt.
It is expected that Hangzhou Bay will be developed into a world class
grand bay area that faces the world and leads the country. With its focus
on the urbanization of the Yangtze River Delta Region, Zhong An has
accumulated extensive experience in the development of complex real
estate projects in this region. In addition, through its subsidiary, CNC,
which specializes in commercial property development and the provision
of other light-asset commercial services, the Group will build up premium
brands in various locations within the Yangtze River Delta Region.
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The Group will implement its established development strategy, focus
on second- and third-tier cities with strong economic foundations in the
Yangtze River Delta Region, and gradually enter the densely populated
cities in central and western China such as Kunming, Xi’an and Wuhan,
and seek opportunities to enter the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Bay
Area. At the same time, the Group will strengthen its cooperation with
strategic partners to further expand its market share and maintain its
competitive edge in the industry.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere gratitude to the
support and trust of our shareholders and business partners of the
Company as well as the dedicated efforts of all our staff.

Shi Kancheng
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China,
23 August 2018
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10 Zhong An Real Estate Limited
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BUSINESS RESULTS

The unaudited consolidated revenue of the Group for the period under
review was about RMB1,601.5 million, representing a decrease of about
49.5% from RMB3,171.5 million for the corresponding period in 2017. The
profit for the period under review was about RMB95.6 million, representing
a decrease of about 82.7% from RMB553.7 million for the corresponding
period in 2017. The unaudited earnings per share for the period under
review was RMBO0.01 (earnings per share of corresponding period in 2017:
RMBO0.09).

The Board does not recommend the payment of interim dividend for the
period under review (2017: nil).

INDUSTRY REVIEW

During the first half of 2018, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of China
amounted to RMB41,896.1 billion, representing an increase of 6.8% as
compared with the corresponding period in the previous year, based
on comparable prices. With the deepening of structural reforms on the
supply-side, the market is expected to be positive in general.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, in the first half of 2018,
the investment in property development stood at RMB5,553.1 billion
nationwide, representing a nominal growth of 9.7% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. Among which, residential
investment amounted to RMB3,899.0 billion, representing a growth
of 13.6%. The residential investment accounted for a proportion of
70.2% of the investment in property development. In the first half of
2018, the gross floor area (GFA) of commodity properties sold was
771.43 million sq. m., representing an increase of 3.3% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. Among which, the GFA
of residential properties sold amounted to 668.52 million sg. m.,
representing an increase of 3.2%, the GFA of office buildings sold
amounted to 19.49 milion sg. m., down by 6.1%, and the GFA of
commercial business properties sold amounted to 52.57 million sg. m.,
representing a growth of 2.4%. The sales of commodity properties
amounted to RMB6,694.5 billion, representing a growth of 13.2%. Among
which, the sales of residential properties amounted to RMB5,660.4
billion, representing an increase of 14.8%, the sales of office buildings
amounted to RMB283.7 billion, representing a decrease of 3.2%, and the
sales of commercial business properties amounted to RMB577.2 billion,
representing a growth of 5.7%.
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In the first half of 2018, the land area purchased by property development
enterprise was 110.85 million sg. m., representing a growth of 7.2% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year; the premium of the
land transaction amounted to RMB526.5 billion, representing a growth of
20.3%. The area under construction by property development enterprise
was 7,096.49 million sg. m., representing a growth of 2.5% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. Among which, the area
under construction for residential properties was 4,879.33 million sg. m.,
representing a growth of 3.2%. The area of newly commenced properties
was 958.17 million sq. m., representing a growth of 11.8%. Among which,
the area of newly commenced residential properties was 706.11 million
sg. m., representing a growth of 15%. The completed construction area
of properties was 371.31 million sg. m., representing a drop of 10.6%.
Among which, the completed construction area of residential properties
was 259.62 million sqg. m., representing a drop of 12.8%. At the end of
June in 2018, the area of commodity properties pending for sale was
550.84 million sg. m., representing a decrease of 9.27 million sg. m. as
compared with the end of May. Among which, the area of residential
properties pending for sale was decreased by 6.42 million sg. m, the area
of office buildings pending for sale was decreased by 0.47 million sg. m.
and the area of commercial business properties pending for sale was
decreased by 1.68 million sg. m..

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Revenue

During the period under review, the revenue generated from the sales of
properties amounted to about RMB1,422.4 million, which represented a
decrease of about 54.9% from RMB3,151.8 million for the corresponding
period in 2017. The decrease was due to the drop of properties delivered
this period as compared to the corresponding period last year.

The revenue from property leasing amounted to about RMB85.3 million
(corresponding period in 2017: RMB39.1 million), representing an increase
of about 118.2%. The hotel operation of the Group recorded a revenue of
about RMB47.9 million (corresponding period in 2017: RMB25.1 million),
representing an increase of about 90.8%. The increase was due to the
reason that one new self-owned hotel of the Group started trial operation
at the end of 2017. The Group’s property management services recorded
a revenue of about RMB76.5 million (corresponding period in 2017:
RMB40.9 million), representing an increase of about 86.9%.
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12 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESH

The average property sales price per sq. m. achieved by the Group for
the period under review was about RMB10,974 (corresponding period in
2017: RMB9,741), representing an increase of about 12.7%. The average
sales cost per sq. m. for the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 was
about RMB6,874 (corresponding period in 2017: RMB7,569), representing
a decrease of about 9.2%. It was mainly due to the differences of the
properties delivered as compared with those in corresponding period in
2017.

Gross profit

During the period under review, the gross profit of the Group amounted
to about RMB553.5 million, representing a decrease of about 17.9% as
compared with that of the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit
margin was about 34.6%, increased by about 13.4 percentage points as
compared with that of the corresponding period in 2017. The increase in
gross profit margin was mainly due to the booming of the market, which
resulted in an significant increase in sales prices, and the changes of
properties delivered.

Other income and gains

During the period under review, other income and gains amounted to
RMB56.0 million (corresponding period in 2017: RMB30.5 million), which
mainly comprised bank interest income and gain on disposal of investment
properties.

Selling and distribution costs

During the period under review, the selling and distribution costs of the
Group increased from RMB91.0 million for the corresponding period
in 2017 to about RMB108.4 million, representing an increase of about
19.1%. It was principally due to an increase in the number of new projects,
resulting in an increase in selling and distributing activities during the period
under review as compared with the corresponding period in 2017.

Administrative expenses

During the period under review, the administrative expenses of the Group
increased from RMB129.6 million for the corresponding period in 2017 to
about RMB204.3 million, representing an increase of about 57.7%, which
was mainly due to the addition of multiple subsidiaries during the period
under review.
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Changes in fair value of investment properties

During the period under review, the changes in fair value of investment
properties of the Group decreased from RMB359.1 million for the
corresponding period in 2017 to about RMB73.6 million, representing a
decrease of about 79.5%.

Finance costs

During the period under review, the finance costs increased from RMB11.4
million for the corresponding period in 2017 to about RMB24.6 million,
representing an increase of about 115.7%. The increase was mainly due to
the decrease in capitalization of interests for the period.

Earnings

The profit for the period under review was about RMB95.6 million for
the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 (corresponding period in
2017: RMB553.7 million), representing a decrease of about 82.7%.
This decrease was mainly due to the decrease in revenue of properties
delivered and the drop in fair values of investment properties during the
period under review.

B o AFEIR o FM
Zhong An e White Horse Palace ® Hangzhou
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESH

Contracted sales

As of 30 June 2018, the contracted GFA (gross floor area) sold by the
Group was about 244,713 sqg. m. with the amount of about RMB3,471.7
million. Set out below are the details of the contracted GFA sold from the
Group’s projects:

BEHE

HZE2018%F 6 A30H * AEEMERIHEREE
HEXN B244,713F 5K « @BEAARE3,471.7
BEJ ' BT

Percentage
of interest
in the project
attributable
Contracted Contracted to the Group
GFA sold amount AEBELER
Projects EHH ERKEmE ERKBEKRA EREIL
SQ. m. RMB million
TR AREBEET
Hangzhou M
Chaoyang No. 8 FAr5 8 9% - 16 90.0%
Chaoyang Yinzuo Bk ER 1,383 31 62.2%
Jiarun Mansion (10C) =HQEE(00) 8,277 298 69.2%
Ideal Bay P18 8,572 147 45.9%
Landscape Bay =& - 2 92.6%
White Horse Manor BHEILEH 4,476 112 90.0%
White Horse Palace H ST 356 13 90.0%
College Square EFEB 7,600 140 90.0%
Highlong Plaza ERES 7,276 100 62.2%
Xixi Manhattan EERE 52 1 31.7%
Xixi New City PR 10,837 432 69.2%
Onshore Blue Mountain FLEE 14,949 317 90.0%
Gentle Mansion RIBIEIT 24,153 629 21.6%
Xinnongdu HEH 62,978 336 12.4%
Others Hiftb 40 0.3
Yuyao Rk
Dragon Bay e 4,862 132 90.0%
Jade Mansion IR 10,935 228 93.0%
Zhong An Times Square (Phase ) BLERES—H 22,565 191 62.2%
Zhong An Times Square (Phase l) DR ES —H 1,677 31 64.3%
Cixi =z
Zhong An Landscape Garden R IKEE 4,286 31 90.0%
Huaibei yi: e
Vancouver City SR ST EEY, 49,439 286 100.0%
244,713 3,471.7
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD

Booked sales ABRSHE

As of 30 June 2018, the booked GFA sold by the Group was about &{ZE 20186 H30H @ NEE M AR E@E
129,622 sg. m. with the amount of about RMB1,422.4 million. Set out  SEEFE 4 /5129,622 F K » 2RO B AR
below are the booked GFA sold from these projects: 1,422 4 A& FERHEHIAT

Percentage of
interest in the

project
attributable
to the Group
REFLIEE Booked GFA Amount
Projects BHH EEE L AREABREERRE &8
(sg. m.) (RMB million)
(FrK) (AREBET)
Hangzhou |
Landscape Bay =& 92.6% 1.6
Hidden Dragon Bay f=ieE 64.0% 721 9.1
Ideal Bay P A8 45.9% 17,993 276.5
Jiarun Mansion (IOC) 5= H2EE (10C) 69.2% 645 15.0
Chaoyang No.8 BHEZ 8 9% 90.0% 17.3
Chaoyang Yinzuo BAR5 R B2 62.2% 2,805 60.9
White Horse Manor H 5L 90.0% 5,096 65.5
Onshore Blue Mountain FEEL 90.0% 15,308 304.9
Others Hith 40 0.2
Yuyao Rk
Dragon Bay 1HEEE 90.0% 3,586 971
Jade Mansion ERREE 93.0% 1,598 13.0
Zhong An Times Square (Phase ) RELRERESE—E 62.2% 28,629 229.7
Zhong An Times Square (Phase Il) RLBERES 8 64.3% 4,195 66.8
Cixi =Z
Zhong An Landscape Garden R IKEE 90.0% 45,685 236.9
Huaibei JEdE
Vancouver City B B EE 100.0% 3,322 28.0

129,622 1,422.4
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESH

Land reserve

During the period under review, the Group obtained five parcels of land
by acquisition and the methods of bidding invitation, auction or listing,
with increased land bank of approximately 1.429 million sg. m., at a
consideration of approximately RMB3.08 billion.

As of 30 June 2018, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank was about 7.6
million sg. m. in total.

T fEE

REEEHA - AEBE BT MERE T AR
AR - FIE L EEEmMEL 14298 F
TR BREHARKE30.8(ET

HZE2018F6 A30H @« REE L EERNARE
SEBAHNBT6ABEFTK -

GFA
Location B EEmE
(sg. m.) %
(FHK) Botk
China =8
Zhejiang Pronvince HTE
Hangzhou LN 4,479,013 58.7%
Yuyao ok 511,213 6.7%
Cixi R 387,114 51%
Lishui Bk 257,859 3.4%
Anhui Province ZEHE
Hefei Aaie 673,733 8.8%
Huaibei VAL 694,725 9.1%
Jiangsu Province LERE
Xuzhou BN 562,371 7.4%
Tianjin K= 52,477 0.7%
Canada mex
Province of British Columbia RBS W EE
Vancouver JB BT 7,719 0.1%
Total &t 7,626,224

This sizable land bank is sufficient for development by the Group in more
than five years.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed 3,174 staff (30 June 2017: 2,903
staff). For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018, the unaudited staff
cost of the Group was about RMB136.6 million (corresponding period of
2017: RMB129.5 million), representing an increase of about 2.5%. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in staff cost from the increase of
the headcounts during the period under review.
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The employees’ remuneration policy was determined by reference to
factors such as remuneration information in respect of the local market,
the overall remuneration standard in the industry, inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and performance of the employees. The Group
conducts performance appraisal once every year for its employees,
the results of which are applied in annual salary review and promotion
assessment. The Group’s employees are considered for the entitlement of
annual bonus according to certain performance conditions and appraisal
results. To attract talented persons and stabilize the management, eligible
participants (including employees of the Group) may be granted options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”) pursuant to its share
option scheme. The Group also provides continuous learning and training
programmes to its employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as
to maintain their competitiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board shall determine the dividend policy of the Company in
future according to the financial condition, operating results, capital
requirements, shareholders’ equity, contractual restraint and other factors
considered relevant by the Board.

In addition, the Company’s future dividend payments to its shareholders
will also depend upon the availability of dividends received from its
operating subsidiaries in the PRC. PRC laws require that dividends be paid
out of the net profit calculated according to the PRC accounting principles,
which differ in many aspects from IFRSs. PRC laws also require enterprises
located in the PRC to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves
before they distribute the net proceeds. These statutory reserves are not
available for distribution as cash dividends. Distributions from subsidiary
companies may also be restricted if they incur losses or in accordance with
any restrictive covenants of bank credit facilities or other agreements that
the Company or its subsidiaries may enter into in the future.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had total assets of approximately
RMB27,182.0 million (31 December 2017: approximately RMB22,597.7
million) which were financed by current liabilities of approximately
RMB14,388.8 million (31 December 2017: approximately RMB9,479.4
million), non-current liabilities of approximately RMB3,544.5 million (31
December 2017: approximately RMB4,059.1 million) and shareholders’
equity of approximately RMB9,248.7 million (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB9,059.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESH

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had aggregate cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash of about RMB2,343.5 million (31 December 2017:
RMB3,433.0 million). The decrease was mainly due to the increase in
capital expenditures.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB5,325.5 million (31 December

2017: approximately RMB4,559.4 million).

The maturity profile of the bank and other borrowings were as follows:

REER 20184 6 A 30 HMIR & MBS EEYM
ZRHFELEHENHARKE2,3435BE L (2017 F
12A31H : AR¥3433.08ET) - MAPEER
BT HISINATEL -

R2018F 6 A30H @ AEBMM BIRITERLE
WKL B ANRES 325 5B E T (2017412 A 31
H:#HWARE45504F[E85T) -

BRARTREMERZGERAT

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
6H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fez&=%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Repayable: ARTFIBMER
Within one year —FR 2,889,989 1,627,419
Over one year but within two years ZR—FELRMF 462,000 2,275,000
Over two years but within five years ZRMEBRLRAF 1,903,500 487,000
Over five years AFL L 70,000 170,000
5,325,489 4,559,419

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB1,561,772,000
(81 December 2017: RMB1,700,955,000) bear interest at fixed rates
whereas the rest bear interest at floating rates. As at 30 June 2018, the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bore effective interest
rates ranging from 0.90% to 8.20% per annum (31 December 2017:
0.90% to 8.20% per annum).

The denominated amounts of the borrowings were as follows:

b BERIT R EME A AR 1,561,772,000 7T
(2017F 128318 : A R %1,700,955,000 7T )
RETEFETE  MEKRIIRZEFEE - B
201846 A30 A NREEMM BIRITREME R
HIE B EF Z N F0.90% = 8.20% (2017 412 A
318 : FFI%E50.90% = 8.20%) °

BREFN2FEE BT

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

2018 2017

6H30H 12 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (fezE%)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

RMB loans and borrowings AREETRER 5,001,480 4,239,070
JPY loans and borrowings HEEZRMER 38,792 37,565
US$ loans and borrowings ETERRER 285,217 282,784
5,325,489 4,559,419
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The Group maintained a healthy liquidity position. The current ratio, being
a ratio of total current assets to total current liabilities, was approximately
1.18 (81 December 2017: approximately 1.30). The ratio of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings to total assets was 0.20 (31 December
2017: 0.20).

The net gearing ratio of the Group (defined as net debt divided by total
equity) was 0.32 (31 December 2017: 0.12) (net debt is defined as total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalent
and total restricted cash). The Group always adopts a conservative
approach in its treasury and financial management. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits. The Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purpose for the year under review.

Capital commitments

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had capital commitments of about
RMB2,533.2 million (31 December 2017: about RMB1,234.2 million) in
respect of property development expenditure. It is expected that the Group
will finance such commitments from its own funds and external financing
(such as bank loans).

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2018, the contingent liabilities of the Group was about
RMB2,733.7 million (31 December 2017: about RMB3,205.4 million),
which were guarantees given by the Group in favour of certain banks for
the grant of mortgage loans to buyers of the Group’s properties.

Foreign exchange and interest rate exposure

As the sales, purchase and bank borrowings of the Group in the respective
first half of 2018 and 2017 were made mainly in Renminbi, the foreign
exchange risk exposed to the Group was relatively minor. The Group did
not use foreign exchange hedging instruments to hedge foreign exchange
risks in both periods.

The interest rates for certain portion of the Group’s loans were floating.
Upward fluctuations in interest rates will increase the interest cost of new
loans and existing loans. The Group currently does not use derivative
instruments to hedge its interest rate risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESH

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured
by:

BEEH

R2018F 6 A30H + AEBMRITREMERH
AT BRI

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
6 A30H 12 H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&EZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Carrying value of the Group’s assets: REEEENIREE
Property and equipment B EKR&E 114,474 90,704
Investment properties EME 1,721,274 1,732,798
Properties under development EEEGEE I ES 2,403,201 1,577,454
Completed properties held for sale FHESHEE AR 1,661,888 1,899,211
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 528,822 184,726

Equity interest of subsidiaries of the RN T E A 7 I E

Company 40,000 -
6,469,659 5,484,893

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 20 July 2018, Zhong An Shenglong Commercial Co., Ltd.* (R LB
AR A7) (‘Zhong An Shenglong”) entered into an equity transfer
agreement to acquire 22.65% of the equity interest of Zhejiang Xinnongdou
Industrial Co., Ltd.* (#1/L B#E B R A 7)) (‘Zhejiang Xinnongdou’”),
at a consideration of approximately RMB353 million. The consideration
shall be settled by the allotment and issue of an aggregate of 178,280,000
consideration shares by CNC at the issue price of HK2.47 per share. Upon
the completion of the transfer, Zhong An Shenglong will own an aggregate
of 42.5% of the entire equity interest in Zhejiang Xinnongdou. Details of
such transaction are disclosed in the announcement dated 20 July 2018.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of interim dividend for the
six-month period ended 30 June 2018 (2017: nil).
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward into the second half of 2018, the global economy will
further improve while the China’s economy is likely to hit the bottom
of economic restructuring. It is expected that control measures for the
property market of China will still be adhered to the main principle of
“housing properties are for accommodation but not for speculative trading”
to implement category-based regulations by adopting different policies
for different cities. Strict control on investment demand will continue
in first- and second- tier cities, while differentiated destocking strategy
will be implemented in third- and fourth- tier cities according to their
respective conditions. Under the general trend of China’s new urbanization
development and steady economic growth, the real estate market in China
will enter into a stable development stage.

The Group will remain short-term prudential and long-term optimistic view,
proactively seize market opportunities and adjust investment, development
and marketing strategies to maintain sustainable development of the
Group so as to bring satisfactory return to the shareholders. The Group
will continue to promote its business model of ‘acquiring land and selling
products at a fair price; developing projects and receiving sales proceeds
in a quick process’. It will implement a product mix strategy with quick-sale
products as its main products and improved products as its supplemental
products, so as to accelerate asset turnover. The Group will fully leverage
on its extensive experience and strong brand name in the Yangtze River
Delta Regions and constantly integrate resources channels to achieve a
steady development with scale matches benefits.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the period under review, the Company had applied the principles
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and complied with the
code provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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22 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Report on Review of Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS S M HRR N ERRE

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184F 6 A 30 B |/~ & A EAfS

EY:

To the shareholders of Zhong An Real Estate Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the accompanying interim condensed consolidated
financial information set out on pages 24 to 76 which comprises interim
condensed consolidated statement of financial position of Zhong An
Real Estate Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) as at 30 June 2018 and the related
interim consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the six-month period then ended
and explanatory notes. The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of a
report on interim financial information to be in compliance with the relevant
provisions thereof and International Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” (“IAS 34”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these interim condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance
with 1AS 34. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim
condensed consolidated financial information based on our review. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Report on Review of Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG E M BHRROFHRE

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184F 6 A 30 B |-/~ & A EAfS

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Review Engagements 2410 (“HKSRE 2410”) “Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical
and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than
an audit conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing.
Consequently, it does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial
information are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
IAS 34.

Yours faithfully,
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

23 August 2018
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24 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

AR S IRER

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184F 6 A 30 B |/~ & A EAfS

For the six-month period

ended 30 June
BZ6H30HIEAEAHM
2018 2017
2018 2017 5
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REZER) (REEEZ)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARET T ARET T
Revenue PN 4 1,601,499 3,171,518
Cost of sales SHES R AN (1,048,013) (2,497,614)
Gross profit EF 553,486 673,904
Other income and gains H A A R iz 4 55,960 30,476
Selling and distribution costs SHE Mo iHR X (108,408) (91,014)
Administrative expenses TBAX (204,292) (129,575)
Other expenses Hp 4 (45,427) (8,943)
Changes in fair value of investment properties ~ EWEN AL 9 73,554 359,090
Finance costs WIEEA (24,565) (11,389)
Share of losses of joint ventures DMhE R ERR N KR EE (629) (1,359)
Profit before tax RR B A1 R 5 299,679 821,190
Income tax expense FrS R 6 (204,088) (267,489)
Profit for the period HA A F 5 95,591 553,701
Attributable to: LA FELE -
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ YN 59,271 430,325
Non-controlling interests IR A 36,320 123,376
95,591 553,701
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary &2 AZLERIGHE AEWN
equity holders of the parent (RMB) BEREF(ARY) 7
RMB RMB
AR AR
Basic and Diluted EARREE 1.02 cents % 9 cents o
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FHMRGES 2ERER

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184F 6 A 30 B |/~ & A EAfS

For the six-month period

ended 30 June
HZ6H30H 1AL HM™
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Profit for the period HAFE 95,591 553,701
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEls
Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to ~ REZHIREFHEE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: BEarEamEmEsE
Exchange differences arising on HRE G BA Rl ISRk
translation of the financial EEMERZ5E
statements of foreign subsidiaries (16,746) 10,868
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) to REZEETHEE
be reclassified to profit or loss BanmEMtEm
in subsequent periods ezs,/ (B518) F58 (16,746) 10,868
Total comprehensive income for the period HiRAZHEWREEE 78,845 564,569
Attributable to: LA FELE -
Owners of the parent [SUNSIEZZ=PN 56,264 441,193
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 22,581 123,376
78,845 564,569

BREEARAT T/ \FHHRE
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26 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR BA AR & B ESAR L 3R

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (K& %)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizF AR¥T T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment BEENEE 8 2,075,553 2,059,812
Investment properties KB 9 5,427,628 5,475,911
Properties under development FAEE AR Y2 10 1,366,425 1,857,179
Available-for-sale investments AL ERE - 367,653
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFARMEE
other comprehensive income WEH SRS E 11 373,834 =
Investments in joint ventures NEERENKRE 12 - 629
Long term prepayments RHFER 275,733 236,665
Restricted cash 2R HIR B 75 526,572 139,927
Deferred tax assets RIEFI IR & BE 128,803 101,062
Total non-current assets HIEMBEE 10,174,548 10,238,838
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Completed properties held for sale FHEHE BRI 13 3,371,384 3,528,806
Properties under development FEE R 2 10 8,870,309 4,416,081
Inventories FE 19,066 17,431
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 R R 14 58,752 64,239
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - e REMERIA 2,704,777 764,020
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFAERN
through profit or loss ERMEE 73,403 72,298
Restricted cash ZRER S 15 792,829 790,733
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 15 1,024,109 2,502,367
Investment property classified as held for sale D 1AAIFIEHENTREME 9 92,772 202,889
Total current assets BB EE 17,007,401 12,358,864
CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Advance from a joint venture —fRAEERETAMNK 228,519 108,520
Trade payables JERTE B ARK 16 1,543,757 1,747,904
Other payables and accruals H e FRIE K fE T E 2,947,274 636,930
Advances from customers RPEBEHMAR 5,770,104 4,573,014
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T EIRITTER R EALE R 17 2,889,989 1,627,419
Tax payable JE A IE 1,009,170 785,661
Total current liabilities FEV =N 14,388,813 9,479,448
NET CURRENT ASSETS BFREBEE 2,618,588 2,879,416
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBIEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 12,793,136 13,118,254
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR S MR R

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
6 H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RESERZ) (geE%)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARET T AREBT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRIRITTE R R E AL ER 17 2,435,500 2,932,000
Deferred tax liabilities BETHEAE 1,108,986 1,127,090
Total non-current liabilities wIEREERE 3,544,486 4,059,090
Net assets FEE 9,248,650 9,059,164
EQUITY P
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B NEHA AELERE
Share capital &N 18 514,951 516,469
Treasury Share EEFRR S (4,108) -
Reserves it 6,981,045 6,934,889
7,491,888 7,451,358
Non-controlling interests IR 1,756,762 1,607,806
Total equity R 9,248,650 9,059,164
RREEABAT T \FhHRE
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SRR SEERE KR

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184F 6 A 30 B |/~ & A EAfS

Attributable to owners of the parent

SAARRER
Share Share  Stafutory  Statutory  Exchange
premium Capital option  surplus reserve fluctuation Non-
Share  Treasury  account Contributed  reseve  reserve  reserve fnd  reseve  Retained controlling Total

Capitl ~ Share RE  sumlus BE BRE  ieRs e EXE®  pofts  Total interests  equity
Bx  EghR  AEE  EHER  EEe  Rf  EEE  Rpe EEE  RERA G FERER  4En
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARRTR ARBTT ARMTZ ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR

At 1 January 2018 MOIBEIATE 516469 - 3022503 30318 207977 118492 213407 8200 (110069 3395022 7451358 1,607,806 9,050,164
Proft forthe perod Bl - - - - - - - - - R R %30 955
Other comprehensive BNif2EEE:

[oss for the period:

Exchange diferences on HERSHEE

translaion o oregn operations ~ ZIEX £ - - - - - - - - (3on) - B0 (18739 (16,746)
Tota comprefiensive BREE

income for the period haeE - - - - - - - - B B 664 2581 78845
Addtonofnoncontoling & HEARER

[nferests - - - - - - - - - - - 1428 134288
Repurchase and canceliion ~ EEREERG

of shares (1,761) (4,108) (9,486) - 2,150 - - - - - (17,509 (1908 (25413
Bxercise of share opfions fifERE 83 - 1528 - - - - - - - 1M - 1M

Transferof share opton R R
reseneupon teforeive  ERAEAE
orexpiy of share optons RiEERS - - - -

(8,160) - - - 8,160 - - -

At30June 2018 Unaudted) 201846 A30R
(7E%H) G495 (4108) 3014545+ 20318* 285827 110332 203407 8200*  (M3076)* 3422483*  TA91888 1796762 9,248,650

At1 January 2017 ROTEIAIE 20811 - 2966202 39318 269300 161911 208369 8239 (104504 2779216 6538902 1172283 7,711,135
Proft for the period SRR = = = = = = = = - 4035 4036 128376 553701
Other comprehensive BNEMAERR:

loss for the peroc:

Exchange diferences on BEISHEE

tranglaion o oregn operations ~ ZIE 2% - - - - - - - -9 -9 155 10868
Total comprefiensive BR2E
income for the period YaiE = = = = = = = = 9333 43035 439658 124911 564569
Addtonofnoncontioling & A0gEARER
interests - - - - - - - - - - - QM 2
Issue of sfares Balh 4095 - 18673 - - - - - - - 608 - 24608
Transferof shere opton RERER R
rseveuponteforeie  ERABAE
orexpiry o share options RiEEES - - - - - B - - - 50 - - -
AL30June 2017 (Unaudted) 20176 A30A
(EZH) 261,746 - 314992 39318F 269300  146611°  208369" 8239°  (O6,171)" 3214841° 7203168 1319919 8528087
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB  * ZERBREBEAHUBHRARAAR FEMRERE
6,981,045,000 (30 June 2017: RMB6,941,422,000) in the consolidated statement AE#6,981,045,0007T (201746 A30R : AR

of financial position. 6,941,422,0007T) °
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

PR ERERER

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184F 6 A 30 B |/~ & A EAfS

For the six-month period ended

30 June
HZE6H30HLAEAHM
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBNBERE
Profit before tax BR A% B E 299,679 821,190
Adjustments for: B
Depreciation e 36,954 7,910
Changes in fair value of REMER
investment properties DR EEEE (73,554) (359,090
Investment income from financial assets at BARBEF AR
fair value through profit or loss SREERERA (32,581) =
Changes in fair value of financial assets at BRREEFABRZN
fair value through profit or loss SREENAAEBEEZE (5,524) 69
Realised of properties under FEHIEE #35
development to net realisable value Ea[2IRFE - (650)
Share of losses of joint ventures DMEREBENEE 629 1,359
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREMEEBERRN
investment properties B8,/ (k) 36,796 (16,726)
Finance costs B%EA 24,565 11,389
286,964 465,451
Increase in properties under development FE R EIE N (3,804,490) (92,561)
Decrease in completed properties BEHED B E
held for sale > 157,422 1,401,340
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables W E SRR R R/ () 5,487 (14,353)
Increase in prepayments, BT - e REAER
deposits and other receivables FIRE N (1,940,757) (49,522)
(Increase)/decrease in long term prepayments RHIFEF U (&), R (39,068) 254,265
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,635) 217)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash HEMBREXRHRE
for pre-sales proceeds (&), md (49,684) 69,187
Decrease in trade payables BB SRR (204,147) (284,631)
Increase in other payables and accruals H b (S 5008 K ST FE N 1,741,142 27,039
Increase/(decrease) in advances from customers ZEEfEM, () 1,187,268 (604,065)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations "EEi (M) FENEREL (2,661,498) 1,171,933
Interest paid ERFLE (209,252) (168,386)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid EFTEH Rt ER (26,424) (174,479
Net cash (used in)/generated from meEi (H),/FiEmn
operating activities B&FE (2,897,174) 828,568
BLEEARAT —ZT—/\FHhHRs
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FHIBRGEHESRER

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2018 &% 20184 6 A 30 B 1/~ & A EAfS

For the six-month period ended

30 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

30 June
HZE6H30HLAEAHM
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities RELBEENRLSRE
Investment on financial assets at fair value BERREEFAEMERREN

through other comprehensive income SREBEENIRE (6,181) (6,596)
Investment on financial assets at fair value BARBEFABR

through profit or loss ERMEERE 37,000 =
Prepayment to investments RIEEBTERR (173,077)
Investment on joint venture REERENIRE - (5,000)
Loans received from a joint venture E M6 & BRI ER - 173,246
Proceeds from disposal of joint venture HESETEMEIIEA - 759
Increase in investment properties and REMERERRE

investment properties under construction LIESE)| (31,385) =
Purchases of items of property and equipment REREKFHEER (56,487) (110,542)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREYEMERE 236,365 422,900
Advance from a joint venture —fAARECEBMNK 119,999
Proceeds from disposal of items HEREENRSEEE

of property and equipment FTS3E 3,792 1,667
Increase in restricted cash PR IR &1 0 (339,057) (119,523)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEK () EEN

investing activities REFE (35,954) 183,834
Cash flows from financing activities METHELENRERE
New interest-bearing bank and other borrowings BB ITER R EMER 1,954,952 1,461,152
Repayment of interest-bearing bank ERET BRITER K

and other borrowings HAfER (1,188,882) (1,762,133
Addition of non-controlling interests NG AR e 134,283 22,775
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRMD TR ROE - 224,608
Repurchase of shares EAEIl ) (25,413) -
Loan from minority shareholder DR FIRE 2 ER - 63,014
Exercise of share options TTIE B 1,77 =
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due to a & ﬁiﬂ EARARER X

non-controlling shareholder m,(3200) 587,940 (50,000
Net cash generated from/(used in) METHEE (AN

financing activities R&FE 1,464,651 (40,584)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁ}ifﬁ.ﬁ%{“ L/

and cash equivalents ),/ B INEEE (1,468,477) 971,818
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period Hﬁ%}ﬁi@&iﬂ%—rfﬁ% 2,502,367 946,651
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXREFHNTE - FE (9,781) (4,662)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHRRERBSEEN

end of each period 1,024,109 1,913,807
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASSENEHRIN

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances and time deposits e RIRITREBRTERER 1,024,109 1,913,807
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1.

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B AR & A A R R

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands on 13 March 2007 under the Companies Law (revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the Company is located
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in property development, leasing and hotel operation.
The Group’s property development projects during the period are
located in Zhejiang, Jiangsu and Anhui Provinces, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), and Province of British Columbia,
Canada.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Whole Good Management Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2007. Whole Good Management
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Shi Kancheng, Chairman of the
Company.

The Company has listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) with stock code “00672” on 13
November 2007 and raised capital amounted to HKD3,621 million
from the market.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 have been prepared in
accordance with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”)
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

AFEH
BEFEEGRAR(ARAR ) E2007 £3
R 13 BIRBEREHES A RDE(KIEET) EH
SEHEFEMK L REREER AR c NAF
B = BRI Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

ARAREMBAR((AEE]) TERE
FHEME  HEREEZE - AEERH
MAKEHERERR LR PEARANE
(MBI DT A R ZR/E AR ISR LB
fRttA -

ARREZ(EFRE NAGNE
f& A Al R &% #5E BR A &) & Whole Good
Management Limited + —ZK7 2007 45 A 3
AEABHR R ST M A AR - AR
AIE B RMEMATEREHSR Whole Good
Management Limited °

RARR2007 F11 A1ISHREEBHER S
FrARAR([ BEAERAT]) ER M - B&D
5% A [00672] + #HTHISFTSE 443,621
BEABTT

RREER SR

2.1 RFBEHE

HZ=201846 4308 (-7~ A Hy A £
BRRR A VSRR IZR AR g%
A =R TIBM B T 2R ([ &
RetAER )55 34 5% P EREA TS TR
mE - BRBHERIN  ZEUHRE
PARE(TARE D 73R - WRARE
BT T BN ©

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

FHISRERS

B R

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

32 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Basis of preparation (continued)

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements
do not include all the information and disclosures required
in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements as at
31 December 2017.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, except for the adoption of the new
standards and interpretations as of 1 January 2018.

The Group has adopted the following new revised IFRSs for
the first time in the interim condensed consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Amendments to IFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28
included in Annual
Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

2018 Interim Report
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

WEEERERTERGA)

2.2 Significant accounting policies 22 FESFHEE(E)

(continued)

The Group applies, for the first time, IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. As required by IAS 34, the nature and effect of
these changes from 1 January 2018 are disclosed below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces |IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting.

The Group used modified retrospective approach
while adopting IFRS 9 and elected to present in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) changes in the fair value of all
its equity investments previously classified as available-for-
sale investments (“AFS”), because these investments are held
as long-term strategic investments that are not expected to
be sold in the short to medium term. As a result, assets with
a fair value of RMB367,653,000 were reclassified from AFS
to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) on 1 January 2018.

NES B R FE A B PR B 7S s 2E BI 2B 95
2@ TARBRMEREENFE 1555,
BRI ar o BEBIR 5 R E 34K E
K+ 520181 A1 B LB ML K
HERENT

B BHREERFOREHTA

201841 1 Ba 2 &R FEER -
B BA TS R 5 AE RIS O SR 2 T A BV BBR
SEAFEREHTA - HRRIE
BeRTANSTHE=EFH : HE &
2 RERERETEHEE -

7N 5 (B 5 4 R R B 75 3 e 2 R 56 O SR IRF R R
BIEEME - WEEREM2E R ([ E
fh 2 E Wz ) 25 ERTH B R H %
BE(AIHEERE DBREZMBERAEE
ZAREEEE  AAZSREFERS
REERE BFET TR RHERANE -
It - R2018FE1 A1H  RAEBEARK
367,653,000t 2 BEMRAIMEHEEHH A
ERARBEMAEMEERSE(EARE
Bt ARMEERE]) NEREE -

Balance sheet (extract) 31 December 2017 1 January 2018

EEAER(BZE) As originally presented IFRS 9 Restated
201712 431 A BRBB®RE 201851 /31H
R3] ZERIZ 95 5|
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Available for-sale AHHERE
investments (‘AFS”) ([ ERE ) 367,653 (367,653) -
Financial assets at fair BRARBERA
fair value through Hit 2R aNemEE
other comprehensive (MRAREBMERA
income (“FVOCI") HizEREnemEE]) - 367,653 367,653
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement

To determine their classification and measurement category,
IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments
and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of
the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the
instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics.

The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial investments
and held-to-maturity investments have been replaced by:

— Debt instruments at amortised cost;

— Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with gains or losses recycled to
profit or loss on derecognition;

= Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with no recycling of gains or
losses to profit or loss on derecognition; and

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The accounting for the Group’s financial liabilities remains
largely the same as it was under IAS 39. Similar to the
requirements of IAS 39, IFRS 9 requires contingent
consideration liabilities to be treated as financial instruments
measured at fair value, with the changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

As of 1 January 2018, the category of loans and receivables
under IAS 39, including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and notes receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits, other receivables and due from
related parties, were transferred to debt instruments at
amortised cost under IFRS 9.

34 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2018 Interim Report
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMREBERERRK (&)

2.2 Significant accounting policies 22 FESFHEE(E)

(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based
on an expected credit loss model. The Group applied the
simplified approach and recorded lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its accounts and notes
receivables. The Group applied general approach of financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits, other receivables
and due from related parties. The adoption of IFRS 9 has had
no significant impact on the impairment of the financial assets
of the Group.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Significant accounting policies

36 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, |IAS
18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to
all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless
those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The
new standard establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking
into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their
customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for
the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs
directly related to fulfilling a contract.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach which allows the Group to recognize the cumulative
effects of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. The
Group elected to apply the practical expedient for completed
contracts and did not restate the contracts completed before
1 January 2018, thus the comparative figures have not been
restated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

2018 Interim Report
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

WEEERERTERGA)

2.2 Significant accounting policies 22 FESFHEE(E)

(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

° creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° do not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract.

(i)  Accounting for revenue from sales of properties

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group accounted
for revenue from sales of properties when significant
risks and rewards of ownership has been transferred to
the customers on delivery in its entirety at a single time
upon vacant possession.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)

0]

Accounting for revenue from sales of properties
(continued)

Under IFRS 15, for properties that have no alternative
use to the Group due to contractual reasons and
when the Group has an enforceable right to payment
from customers for performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue as the performance
obligation is satisfied over time in accordance with the
input method for measuring progress. The excess of
cumulative revenue recognised in profit or loss over
the cumulative billings to purchasers of properties
is recognised as contract assets. The excess of
cumulative billings to purchasers of properties over
the cumulative revenue recognised in profit or loss is
recognised as contract liabilities.

After the assessment, the Group has considered
that it has an enforceable right to payment from the
purchasers for performance completed to date for
few properties only. Majority of revenue from sale of
properties will continue to be recognised at a point
in time, when the purchasers obtain control of the
properties, i.e. when the purchasers obtain the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed properties
and the Group has present right to payment from
the purchasers. The adoption of IFRS 15 has had no
significant impact on the timing of revenue recognition.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)

0]

(i)

Accounting for revenue from sales of properties
(continued)

In the Note 4 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, the Group disaggregated revenue
recognized from contracts with customers into
categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected
by economic factors. Disclosure for the comparative
period in the notes to the financial statements would
also follow the requirements of IAS 11, IAS 18 and
related interpretations. As a result, the disclosure of
disaggregated revenue in Note 4 would not include
comparative information under IFRS 15.

Accounting for sales commission

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group expensed
off the sales commission associated with obtaining
agreement for sale and purchase with property
buyer. Upon adoption of IFRS 15, sales commissions
incurred directly attributable to obtaining a contract, if
recoverable, are capitalised and recorded in contract
assets. Capitalised sales commissions are charged
to profit or loss when the revenue from the related
property sale is recognised and are included as selling
and marketing expenses at that time. The adoption of
IFRS 15 has had no significant impact on the opening
retained profits as at 1 January 2018; RMB24,851,000
of sales commissions as a type of an incremental cost
were capitalized for the six months to 30 June 2018.

All the other amendments and interpretations apply for the
first time in 2018, but do not have an impact on the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.3 New and revised IFRSs and new
disclosure requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance not

yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Annual improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures’

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS
12 and IAS 23

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 New and revised IFRSs and new

2. WMREBERERRK (&)

2.3 [EARERAEFET R AEER] Bl

disclosure requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance not
yet adopted (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the
IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for application now.

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset).
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 New and revised IFRSs and new

disclosure requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance not
yet adopted (continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases.

The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group’s operating leases. As at 30 June 2018, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB587,078,000 (31 December 2017: RMB491,390,000)
(Note 22).
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WMREBERERRK (&)

2.3 New and revised IFRSs and new

disclosure requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance not
yet adopted (continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12,
nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 17, issued in May 2017, establishes the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard.
The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides
relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts.
This information gives a basis for users of financial statements
to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the
entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash
flows. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1
January 2021. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3 & R ERAEYHTR] K AR AE ET Bl

MM BERELEAUREB L
ARSI N VTR B AR E ()

2017 5 6 A B ) BIFR BT IS s 52
EZEeREF3HEE MK IEER
B Ry EBER G ERE 125 E
Rz TR CGREE [ THE 2B
AR e 2 FrAS e (BIEA RGBT ) &5
BREFE - BTN EARBER T
AR 125REE SN2 IR - L
HOBEEEET EEIEARE
EmREEEERTE c ZREARE
B()EREREEREBRETHEER
I8 ¢ (i) BRI 2 HIAEEE
BEATE 2 BRER + (jii) B BR a0 {n) E 5E FE R
Bim A BIEEE « RE - R
BER  ABARBEREERTE &
(VVEBIEZEREERIELE
ZaBABHER(RNEBARBEE
WRZIENT 2B W E A e
- MERZ Bt 2B ERRNE R
FER Bz YR A mEBA
BILLEER) - REETEH B 2019
F1 A1 BRRRNZAE - ZREER
WA AL B 2 B ISR R E R ]
BEAXE -

I

72017 45 5 A HE 15 ) B PR B 75 R 15 28
BIZE17 5% 5T S A B sz e R Rl €l
R TR 2V EREERREES K
JRA o BIPR SRS 4RI 17 55H) B
EREREBREEAREKZZEL
HIABRAE ) o 2B RHE M EEH IS
H&EAENGRREOE BBV
MR BRI ERERENTE -
ANEETEHE 2021 F1 51 BRERA
g R EERTTEHAEER
2 B R ER A A E AR o

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE

43



Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT 3. IEESWEH

44  Zhong An Real Estate Limited

INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on income derived from business and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@  the residential segment develops and sells residential
properties, and provides management and security services
to residential properties in Mainland China and Canada;

(b)  the commercial segment develops and sells commercial
properties, leases investment properties, owns and operates
hotel and provides management and security services to
commercial properties in Mainland China.

(c)  the hotel operations segment owns and operates a hotel; and

(d)  the other segment mainly comprises the Group’s property
management services business, which provides management
and security services to commercial properties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that interest income, finance costs as well
as head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

2018 Interim Report
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

3. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following tables presented revenue and profit information

3. EESMEHGE)

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

TR FIRFANEEEZE 2018 F K% 2017 F

regarding the Group’s operating segments for the six-month periods 6 A 30 B 1L/ A HiE H9 A8 & 530 2 WA K
ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, respectively. FEER :

Six-month period ended Residential Commercial Total
30 June 2018 (unaudited) E2=2 [EES st
EZ2018% 6 A 30 B LL/~1E B HiRS RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(REER) AR¥ET T ARET T ARET T
Segment revenue: 2 EBULA

Sales to external customers HINBRFIHE 1,084,635 516,864 1,601,499
Revenue WA 1,601,499
Segment results DEELE 344,173 (44,494) 299,679
Profit before tax B 758 A1 817 299,679
Six-month period ended Residential Commercial Total
30 June 2017 (unaudited) x= GEES @5t
HZE 201746 A 308 1-75E A 8ifE RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(REEEZ) AREETTT AREETIT ARET T
Segment revenue: DEBWA

Sales to external customers HINPEPHE 3,035,620 135,898 3,171,518
Revenue A 3,171,518
Segment results DEFEE 457,594 363,596 821,190
Profit before tax BRAE AT FE 821,190

REEERRAR
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table presents segment assets of the Group’s
operating segments as at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017,

respectively:

3. EESWMEHGE)

TERAFIZMAEER 201846 530 H &
201712 A 31 BHEE D2 D EPEE -

Residential Commercial Total
As at 30 June 2018 (unaudited) x= [EES st
20186 A30H RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(REER) AR¥ET T ARETT ARETT
Segment assets PEEE 13,994,244 14,506,671 28,500,915
Reconciliation: SHEN -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 43-&f i i U 7k 78 5 £ (1,318,966)
Total assets BB E 27,181,949
Segment liabilities SEEE 9,763,063 8,498,721 18,261,784
Reconciliation: ZEED -
Elimination of intersegment payables % 2B fE S ZRIE %45 (328,485)
Total liabilities SR 17,933,299
Residential Commercial Total
As at 31 December 2017 (audited) F=E S FEh
M2017F 12 A31 H RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(f5=1%) AREETTT AREFT ARET T
Segment assets DEPEE 10,039,749 13,254,174 23,293,923
Reconciliation: SHED
Elimination of intersegment receivables 530 i & Y 20 I8 5 44 (696,221)
Total assets HmEE 22,597,702
Segment liabilities PHEE 6,332,009 7,245,818 13,577,827
Reconciliation: SBED -
Elimination of intersegment payables 4530 i & 1~ 78 ¥ §5 (39,289)
Total liabilities HEE 13,638,538
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3. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical Information

(@) Revenue from external customers

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

3. EESMEHGE)

(@) REIIBEFHBA

For the six-month period
ended 30 June

E %6 A30H.1/1EA LM
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REX) (REEER)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Mainland China FR B At 1,601,499 3,171,518

The revenue information of continuing operations above is

based on the locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

BB ELERBORABHTIAR

PR A B

(b) FRBEE

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 &

6 H30H 12 H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (F&EZ%)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Mainland China H B A b 9,579,084 9,696,625
Japan BR 74,827 72,869
9,671,911 9,769,494

The non-current asset information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

No revenue amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue was
derived from sales to a single customer or a group of customers
under the common control for the six-month periods ended 30 June
2018 and 30 June 2017.

BB ERERHNIERBDEEER
TIAEEMEMSER BT B8RSR
TARBRIERIAERE °

BEREREFHNER

B ZE 20186 A30H K 201746 A30 R 1L
ANEARRE  SERERE -FFRENK
[RHZE 11 T B 22 = 4B B 0 6 65 T 22 AE O A8
AEEBARI10% KA L -

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents income
from the sale of properties, property leasing income, property
management fee income and hotel operating income during the
period, net of business tax and other sales related taxes and
discounts allowed.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

4. WA - Bl A B i

WA (TR S BIE S X 88) SRR
EMEREA - MEHEERA - DEEEBR
ARJEESEWRA (R EEHR R EHE
REAR R ESTHIR) -

WA - B AR KRS DT -

For the six-month period

ended 30 June
B Z6 H30H8 15188 H”E
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 £
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REX) (REEER)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETTT

(a) Revenue KA
Sale of properties SHEMZ
Property leasing income PEREWRA
Property management fee income ~ #EEEEIWA
Hotel operating income B E & B A

Less: Business tax and surcharges & : Fi& KM 1nE

48 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2018 Interim Report

1,422,414 3,151,780
85,326 39,061
76,472 40,908
47,854 25,084

(30,567) (85,315)

1,601,499 3,171,518




Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (CONTINUED)

With the adoption of IFRS 15 from 1 January 2018, the
disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with

R AR S IS IR MR

As at 30 June

2018 7201846 A30H

4. YA - FHAUA Bl
(%)

B 201841 F1 Bt

7% 5 [ B A B R B 755

SEAE155  ARENEFENRED

customers is as follows: FBUOE -
For the six-month period
ended 30 June 2018
BZE 201856 30 AL~ {EAHM
Property
management
Property and other Hotel
development related services operation
MEEER
EERE H i iamR R BEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Types of goods or services EmRRENER
Property development FHERZ
Residential (B3 806,604 - =
Office & Commercial FE/NEES 430,192 - -
Carpark FES 185,618 - -
1,422,414 = =
Property management and other MEER REMAERS
related services - 76,472 -
Hotel operation BEEE - - 47,854
Total st 1,422,414 76,472 47,854
Timing of revenue recognition AR 2
A point in time R—ERE 1,422,414 - -
Over time BER I HERS - 76,472 47,854
1,422,414 76,472 47,854

REEERRAR

T \FHhHRE
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GAINS (CONTINUED)

(%)

4. WA - Bl A B i

For the six-month period

ended 30 June
H =6 A 308 1L/ A HAE
2018 2017
2018 2017 £
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT T
(b) Other income Hug A
Bank interest income HITHEHA 10,662 9,417
Investment income FEWRA 32,581 =
Change in fair value of financial EBEARBEFAEZNSE
assets at fair value through BEAAEEZS
profit or loss 5,524 -
Others A 6,949 4,276
55,716 13,693
() Gains &
Gain on disposal of investment L EREMERMSRE
properties - 16,726
Foreign exchange gain b 5 Wz 244 57
244 16,783
55,960 30,476
(d) Other expense Hipxk
Donations Ei=E (658) (5,2086)
Loss on disposal of HEREMEEE
investment properties (36,796) -
Others Hith (7,973) (3,737)
(45,427) (8,943)
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5. Bx#mAiFHE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): ANEBMBRBATFES MR (GEA) THE

I8
For the six-month period
ended 30 June
B Z6 A30H.L1EA M
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizF AR¥T T AREBT T
Cost of properties sold B HEMERA 13 891,083 2,449,240
Depreciation e 36,954 7,910
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENEN < 420 420
Minimum lease payments under REGEHER
operating leases: KA FIE
— Office premises o VNEL Y ES 12,622 3,455
Staff costs BITKA 136,620 129,530
Direct operating expenses BEEKERY (BIEHRI
(including repairs and maintenance HENWREMEMES
arising on rental-earning S RIRE)
investment properties) 1,536 1,569
Foreign exchange differences, net M N ERHE (244) (57)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of L EREYER
investment properties & (WEs) 36,796 (16,726)
Realised of properties under kb e
development to net realisable value R RE - (650)
Investment income from financial EARBER AERE
assets at fair value through MEeREERE
profit or loss WA (32,581) =
Fair value gain, net: A EEREFE :
Changes in fair value of KEMEAREE
investment properties b)) 9 (73,554) (859,090)
Change in fair value of financial BAREBER ABE
assets at fair value through NeREEAAEER
profit or loss i) (5,524) 69
BREEARAT T )\FhHRE

51



Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period.

The provision for the PRC income tax has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (six-month period ended 30 June
2017: 25%) on the assessable profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China.

The PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT”) is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds from sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures. The Group has estimated,
made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT liabilities,
the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by the tax

FriTIRBASZ

BN A BN BN B BELERR
FE - BOEEL BB NISH R -

REFSHE AR EEF EAAHE R
B A FERR T A B R A TS R R 25% (B
£ 201746 A 30 A 173 E B iR : 25%)1E
R o

o B 3R (E A ([ 3B E R ) B3t i3
1B RN EH & ¥ TS FORB AT FR R 52 (B 1
THARA - EERAREAMYHEFRER)
EITRB0%E60%HVEAE N R EIK - AEH
EREFBEARBBARER © f5t - fEh
REBRBNFT ALEERER - EARE
ERGETHIRERABZAT - THIREN
BEAERBER&REER Tk

authorities.
For the six-month period
ended 30 June
BZ6H30HILERHE
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CRigzEz)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBF T
Current tax: BNEATHIE
PRC income tax for the period BN AR B FT 1S5 109,157 112,750
PRC land appreciation tax for the period  HAA AR B8 + 31 {E F5 119,984 26,647
Deferred tax PRIERLIE (25,053) 128,092
Total tax charge for the period HINTRIAE 2% 204,088 267,489
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of
RMB59,271,000 (profit for six-month period ended 30 June 2017:
RMB430,325,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,827,998,888 (six-month period ended 30 June 2017:
4,790,588,977) in issue during the period, as adjusted to reflect the
rights issued during the period.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

AR S I R MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

BAFIRBERSE ARW
wBixRT

BREABANERBEARRLTBRFEA
FEAEHA R A A R ¥ 59,271,000 7T (8 =
201746 A30H L/~ B AHREAE - AR
430,325,0007) * A RERAE 21T @A
{9 N #E S £5 81 5,827,998,888 i (& = 2017
6 H 30 A L7 ME A EAfE ¢ 4,790,588,977
PR ETE - AR DR B B A (AR 35 4T o

BREERNSEDENS AR EBRIFE
ARIEEARFEE - FHEMA .2 E@ARm
OB ARMERTHNEBRHRE - S
AESRERETN - ARE BRI T E
RAABEESE SRR R TSRS
TR RREETREHET -

BREEARAT T/ \FHHRE
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE 7. BATEBRISHE AR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BSEREF (8)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based SAEGIRERNGEERRTIER
on:
For the six-month period
ended 30 June
EZ6 A 308 L/ EAHH
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZ) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Earnings EZ7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BRaEBEREE AEN
holders of the parent, used in the A - AREE
basic earnings per share calculation FRREARZA 59,271 430,325
Number of shares
RZEE
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017
(restated)
(sg&E7)
Shares ;87
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESRERBH 2 AFE
shares in issue during the year used in BRI TE RN TS
the basic earnings per share calculation 5,827,998,888 4,790,588,977

5,827,998,888 4,790,588,977

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 8. EERIE
During the six-month period ended 30 June 2018, the Group HZE 201846 A30H 1751 A HIRE - K&
has had an addition of property and equipment with a cost of U5 BE 5N ANME A A R 56,487 ,0007TH)
RMB56,487,000 which was acquired (six-month period ended ERENFHEEZE20175F6 A30H 1L/~ B
30 June 2017: RMB484,788,000), and disposed of property and AR« AR #484,788,0007T) Kk HHERME
equipment with a net carrying amount of RMB3,792,000 (six-month SFEARE 3,792,000t E E M & E (F
period ended 30 June 2017: RMB1,667,000). Z2017F6 A0HIEANEAERE : AR
1,667,000 70) °
As at 30 June 2018, certain of the Group’s property and equipment WBEE17 FTHiEE - 72201846 A30H @ &K
with a net book value of RMB114,474,000 (31 December 2017: SEEmFEAARE 114,474,000 TH &
RMB90,704,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank FTEREEERHZRE(2017FE12H31 8 : AR
loans granted to the Group as disclosed in note 17. 90 704,0007T) EfE AR T AEE T BIR1T
ERREEIR o
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 9. REME
Completed Investment Investment
investment properties under properties
properties construction held for sale Total
B REHE
R&ENE  ERREME REME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
At 31 December 2016 201612 31 AR
and 1 January 2017 (Audited) 2017461 R18 (£%%) 5,129,937 - 257,313 5,387,250
Transfers from properties under HEERENFEREZRANZE
construction to investment properties - 868,814 = 858,814
Increase in investment properties REMEREEREMFELM
and investment properties
under construction 8,843 160,663 = 169,506
Investment properties under ERRENMEER
construction completed 1,019,477 (1,019,477) - -
Transfers to investment ERTREHERENSE
properties held for sale (770,337 - 770,337 -
Transfers to properties under BRERERE
development (697,000) - - (697,000)
Disposal HE - - (865,655) (865,655)
Fair value gain upon transfer ERE AN BEKE 523 - - 523
Change in fair value of RENELAEEED
investment properties 784,468 - 40,894 825,362
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A31AK
and 1 January 2018 (Audited) 20185 1 A1 R (E&HK) 5,475,911 - 202,889 5,678,800
Transfers to investment ERTREHERENSE
properties held for sale (143,151) - 143,151 -
Increase in investment properties REMELM 31,385 - - 31,385
Changes in fair value of REMER R EEZE
investment properties 63,483 - 10,071 73,554
Disposal HE = = (263,339) (263,339)
At 30 June 2018 (Unaudited) 1201846 430 B (K& %) 5,427,628 - 9,772 5,520,400

REEERRAR

T \FHhHRE
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ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

9. RAMR(A)

(CONTINUED)
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
6 A30H 12 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Fez=%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T
Current assets MENEE 92,772 202,889
Non-current assets SEMBNEE 5,427,628 5,475,911
Carrying amount BREE 5,520,400 5,678,800

56 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

The Group’s investment properties as at 30 June 2018 were
revalued with the assistance of an independent professionally
qualified valuer, CBRE Limited, at fair value. CBRE Limited is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation. The fair value
represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged
between a knowledgeable and wiling buyer and a seller in an
arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation, in accordance
with the International Valuation Standards. The valuation is arrived
at with adoption of income approach by taking into account the
rental income derived from the existing leases with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the leases, which are then
capitalized into the value at appropriate rates.

As at 30 June 2018, certain of the Group’s investment properties
with a value of RMB1,721,274,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,732,798,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
loans granted to the Group as disclosed in note 17.

The Group entered into certain sale and purchase agreements
to sell certain investment properties with a carrying amount
of RMB92,772,000. The Group had received deposits
of approximately RMB49,253,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB39,431,000). As the transfer of the property title were still under
progress, the amount received was recognised as advances from
customers as at 30 June 2018.

2018 Interim Report

REE2 IR EYZHER 201846 A 30 HE
B BEABR(EEME AR THRAF]
WBNIE AR BEE - BB FR AR
TEPFIAREMEMENTESR - ARE
BEEETRAGEBERRERNEER
HIR IR BB (AR EE A TR 5 IR B ER
S8 o (HETRMNBAEE AR BRLNE
AW - WHZERLANEE I ER
WAGHREE B - HRRBAEMeL =
BEAERNTEEEMER -

KT EE A7 AT EE - R 20184F6 A30H @ A
LEEEASAREK1,721,274,000 7T (2017
F12 4318 : AR¥1,732,798,0007T) K
HETREMERIERARTAKEF RRITE
REHEAR

REEEETEEARRLEE THREER
AREEQ92,772,000THIIR EYIZE - NEEE
URER #) A R 49,253,000 7T (2017 12 A
318 : AR 39,431,0007T)MiEE - AZ
MERNERERTENEIEER  ZEW
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

10. PROPERTIES UNDER

10. BASE R

DEVELOPMENT
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
6 A30H 12 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (FEEZ)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥T T ARETTT
Carrying amount at beginning A9, F AR E
of period/year 6,273,260 5,218,456
Additions 1840 4,697,135 2,879,988
Transfer from investment properties EEEREYE - 697,000
Transfer to investment properties BRI EY - (858,814)
Transfer to construction in progress RS EETIE - (420,316)
Transfer to completed ERERERE
properties held for sale BRI 13 (733,661) (1,243,054)
Carrying amount at end of period/year HIR /R BREE 10,236,734 6,273,260
Net carrying amount at end of period/year Ei7R /G & BREFE 10,236,734 6,273,260
Current assets MENEE 8,870,309 4,416,081
Non-current assets JEmMBNEE 1,366,425 1,857,179
10,236,734 6,273,260
Except for one property located in Canada, the rest of the Group’s B—ERARINE RS REBHA
properties under development are all located in Mainland China. B 2SR W 2E T AR R b, o
As at 30 June 2018, certain of the Group’s properties under AR Y FE17 P BE B8 - 7201846 A30H -

development with a net book value of RMB2,403,201,000 (31
December 2017: RMB1,577,454,000) were pledged to secure
interest-bearing bank and other loans granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 17.

N B AR FE A AR 2,403,201,000 7T
(201712 318 : ARME1,577,454,000
TL) A TRETFMECIERK TAREEE
BIRITREMEFKAEA

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE
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ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Unlisted equity investments, JEETRERKRE  EBAR
at fair value through other BETAHEMEZARKS
comprehensive income 373,834 -

Management designated the equity investments as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income upon
initial application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, as management
considered them strategic investments in the long run. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments are determined by reference to the
expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items

EBr20184 1 A1 BB X ERABRKRE G
ﬁ%ﬁﬁu%%ﬁé% E_ L AR RIEE R
RARBEFAEMEEREHSEE
THRERERRERIRE T ARAESH
BELIRE o EETRSREN DA BEDZ
EEHREOREET - MR SERARSRE

with similar terms and risk characteristics. No change in fair value for B BRE G R ERESENIEB @A AR
the six months period ended 30 June 2018 or accumulated change 1TRIEELIR - B Z 20184 6 530 H 1E7~ 1@
in fair value as of 30 June 2018, respectively, had been recognized AR AR BEEESHEZE 201846 H30H
in other comprehensive income. M R2FT AR BEZEENE 2 KR
12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 12. RAE R ¥EMHRE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T
Share of net assets DIEEEFE - 629

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses
of a joint venture, Hangzhou Zhongxu Real Estate Co., Ltd., as
the share of losses of the joint venture has exceeded the Group’s
interest in the joint venture. The joint venture will achieve profit in
a foreseeable future after properties revenue recognised, and the
Group considered no need to take up further losses in the current
period.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

13. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD 13. HEHECER X
FOR SALE
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (FezE%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BREREE 3,528,806 5,506,562
Transfer from properties EEE AP (fEE10)
under development (note 10) 733,661 1,243,054
Transfer to cost of properties sold (note 5) BE#Z 2 &SR A (F5E5) (891,083) (3,220,810)
Carrying amount at period/year end HAK FARBREE 3,371,384 3,528,806

14

As at 30 June 2018, certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale of RMB1,661,888,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,899,211,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 17.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly lease
receivables on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. All balances of
the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period are neither
past due nor impaired.

Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

14,

BT A7 BT HE R - 7 20184F6 A30H -
AEEBETHEHEEEXNMEARE
1,661,888,0007C(2017 412 531 H : AR
#£1,899,211,0007T) E/ERR TAK B2
SRITE SRR E A fEFRA IR o

FEN 38 5% R 7k B TR i

AEBEEEFPITVNESIEREZRE
EMHERYFE - GEHR-—KRAS—MEA -
REBEFPMERZERE=[A - EK
B S RPN E RO PTA SR RS
FRE

R E HEARRR %8 MER -

BREEARAT T/ \FHHRE
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

15.0&RESFRMRZR
w5 &

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

2018 FF 2017

6 H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Fez=%)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETTT

Cash and bank balance IR & MIRTTAE#R
Time deposits TE BATF K

Less: Restricted cash B XBREHIRE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERB[ESEEY
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets EREEE
Restricted cash ZRHIRE

Cash at banks eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks.
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1,720,728 3,149,016
622,782 284,011
2,343,510 3,433,027
(1,319,401) (930,660)
1,024,109 2,502,367
792,829 790,733
526,572 139,927
1,319,401 930,660

RITERERIRIT A BRE R AFEFRE
B BERFEPRFERA—RE=(ARTZHNH
ROARAKENRREFLME) - RIET
Rl AV HAE B KA AT B, o SRTTAEER IR
R T FRANEERIFRORTT ©
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15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

Cash at banks eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted
cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds of
properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the related
properties. The deposits can be used for purchases of construction
materials and payments of the construction fees of the relevant
property projects when approval from relevant local government
authorities is obtained. As at 30 June 2018, such guarantee deposits
amounted to approximately RMB695,551,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB645,866,000).

As at 30 June 2018, certain of the Group’s current time deposits
of RMB49,177,000 (31 December 2017: RMB99,069,000) were
pledged to banks as guarantees to mortgage facilities granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties and certain of the Group’s
non-current time deposits of RMB45,851,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,000,000) were pledged to banks as guarantees to mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Besides, certain of the Group’s bank accounts of approximately
RMB1,068,000 (2017: RMB783,000) were guaranteed to bank for
the timely repayment of the loans.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s non-current time deposits of
RMB480,721,000 (31 December 2017: RMB138,927,000) were
pledged to secure a long-term interest-bearing bank loans and
certain of the Group’s current time deposits of RMB47,033,000 (31
December 2017: RMB45,016,000) were pledged to secure short-
term interest-bearing bank loans granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 17.

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

15. 0k ASEFRMEZR

HH® (&)

RITERERRITAERE R AE
PR RHEMERA—XRE=EALE
EVEARR (R A KB RN IR & F ki E) -
K32 R #9728 E B3R 3R R 51 B » IRTT
BEHRMZRAR S ERCHL &R
BELOEBRFZIRT

BEREEAER  NEBOE TMER
BENRAK KRR E TEE SRR
WRIEERITIRP « {E AR ERK
BRIES - BESHEMAE AT PI A4t
EE - Rer ARBEERBYEIER E
EMB RINEEER - KR201846 A30
B ZERESH B AR 695,551,000 7T
(201712 A31H : A R % 645,866,000
JT) °

MR2018F 6 A30H  AEEE T RBIEH
TFR AR 49,177,000 7T (2017 £ 12 A 31
B : AR#99,069,0007T) & # F R 17 -
ERAEEYEERMERIZIEE NN E
R RAEEETIHERDTEHFTAARE
45,851,0007C (201712 A31 H : AR
1,000,0007T) | T iR1T - (EAREEY
X B RITERIZIBERAER o

BON REEHNE TRITEFOARS
1,068,000 (2017 % = AR 783,0007T)
1ERERITHER - NEREEEN -

KT EEA7 AT ER - 7201846 A30H A
SE IR BN E TR AR 480,721,000 7T
(201712 318 : A R #138,927,000
T ERAEB R SRITE AR -
RN & B B E HiTE 3 R 85 47,083,000
(201712 A31 H : AR¥ 45,016,000
TEERAS BRI B IRITERAIEA -

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

16. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as follows:

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

16. FEf R B AR

ANER BN SRR S BRI 513 HA
Bt EMRREDITIT

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

2018 £F 2017 &

6 A30H 12 H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (f&2Et%)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within six months ~EARA 1,370,520 1,541,738
Over six months but within one year BENEAE—FR 131,845 153,441
Over one year BE—F 41,392 52,725
1,543,757 1,747,904

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free and are

normally settled based on the progress of construction.

17. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND

OTHER BORROWINGS

bl AE SR T AR Ko S B R i TAEE R

Bt e

17

AFRRITEREHMER

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 £
6 H30H 12 H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (JeE%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Current: BNER :

Bank loans — secured RITER B 1,999,863 1,547,293
Bank loans — unsecured SRITER — EIER 80,126 80,126
Other loans — secured HEmER—EIEKHE 810,000 =
2,889,989 1,627,419

Non-current; JEBNER :
Bank loans — secured RITER—EIEH 2,435,500 1,742,000
Other loans — secured HEhER—E IR - 1,190,000
2,435,500 2,932,000
5,325,489 4,559,419

62 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2018 Interim Report




Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

17. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

AR S M IS R MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

—~ay
b

30 June 31 December
2018 2017

2018 & 2017 4

6 H30H 12431 H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (F&E%)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARMETTT

Repayable: AR T EAREE
Within one year —FR
Over one year but within two years ZHR—FEIRME
Over two years but within five years ZIMERLRAF
Over five years AFEUE

Current liabilities MEAE

Non-current liabilities E =N

Except for certain short term bank and other borrowings amounting
to RMB1,561,772,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,700,955,000)
that bear interest at fixed rates, all bank loans bear interest at floating
rates.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings bear effective interest rates
ranging as follows:

2,889,989 1,627,419
462,000 2,275,000
1,903,500 487,000
70,000 170,000
5,325,489 4,659,419
2,889,989 1,627,419
2,435,500 2,932,000

BRETRBRTRAMERBERARE
1,661,772,000 7T (2017 F 12 A31 8 :
AE#1,700,955,000 7t ) 47 B £ F| & 51
BAN  FTBIRITERIRZEFI LGS °

AEENRTREMERRATHENE
BRAMZRETE

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 45
6 H30H 6 H830H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETTT

Effective interest rates BRRA =

0.90%-8.20% 0.90%-8.20%

BREEARAT T/ \FHHRE
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ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

2 4= 4
17. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 17.HERTERRAMER
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (15
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the HR - AEEMEEXRZEABEAAAR
period were denominated in RMB, HKD, USD, JPY and CAD. The % - 7B o - BERITEHE - RER
2E I PN <
denominated amounts at the end of the reporting periods are as SHARRHASBRAT
follows:
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017
6 H30H 12 431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
RMB loans and borrowings AREEFRRER 5,001,480 4,239,070
JPY loans and borrowings HEESRREHK 38,792 37,565
US$ loans and borrowings ETERRER 285,217 282,784
5,325,489 4,659,419
The Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by: AREFRITERNEAERBA NS IEER
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
6 A30H 12 A381H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REZER) (fEE%)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARET T ARETTT
Carrying values of the Group’s assets: AEEEEREE :
Property and equipment B E K& 8 114,474 90,704
Investment properties LAY 9 1,721,274 1,732,798
Properties under development FEER Y% 10 2,403,201 1,577,454
Completed properties held for sale FESHEE B E 13 1,661,888 1,899,211
Restricted cash ZERHIES 15 528,822 184,726
Equity interest of subsidiaries of NN L NG
the Company 40,000 =
6,469,659 5,484,893

As at 30 June 2018, no Group’s borrowings (31 December 2017: no

borrowings) were guaranteed by Mr. Shi Kancheng.
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AR S M IS R MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. Bk &
Shares g
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
6A30H 12 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (lB8#%)
’000 '000
=F +
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2017: 10,000,000,000 % (2017 &
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares 12 A 31 H: 10,000,000,000 %)
of HK$0.10 each FREE0.10B LA LB HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7% JT 1,000,000757T
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR :
5,817,604,800 (31 December 2017: 5,817,604,800 /% (2017 4
5,836,596,800) ordinary shares 12 A 31 H : 5,836,596,800 /%)
of HK$0.10 each FREE0.10B LA E B RMB514,951 RMB516,469
AR¥514951 T AR516,4697T
19. DIVIDEND 19. &

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

HZE2018F6 A30HIE/NER » AAFW
RIS E RIS (2017 F « ) o

BEEEARAT T /\FhHHEs 65
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following material transactions with related
parties during the period:

(@  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

20. ABBE XS

RS B PN ERFA R RS 5 1T T TAIERAZ
5

Mk
(208

WSV A

‘I

@ BEAEEFEEEA

For the six-month
period ended 30 June

B Z6 H30H8 1188 H”E
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 £
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETTT

Total compensation eperob

(b)  As disclosed in note 17, no Group’s borrowings (31
December 2017: Nil) were guaranteed by Mr. Shi Kancheng at
30 June 2018.

21. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments for property development
expenditure at the end of the reporting period:

3,976 2,815

(o) #NFFFE17FTIRER - 201846 A 30
B - BEEANE B S KT AR S iR
HIER (2017512 A31 8 : &) -

21. i

RIREER - ANEE L5 30 2 5 3 S A&

BT :
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
6 H30H 12431 H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (F&EZ%)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Contracted, but not provided for: EREMNEES
Properties under development FRER Y
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22. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties and certain
completed properties for sales under operating lease arrangements,
on terms ranging from one to fifteen years and with an option
for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

As at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

AR S M IS R MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

22 {EEHERIE

ERHBEA

AEBERBEEHEERFHEREMEM
MODERFHEHENE  BHA—F=
THRETE  BZARIHAEMERE
- ERPTE RS ERT A o

R2018F 6 A30H % 2017F 124311 *
AR B AR PR B ELAE B AT 2 0 BT AH AT
M E MR T3 HA 2 B E B 12 (K U R
ERIEARENT

30 June 31 December

2018 2017

2018 FF 20174
6H30H 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (Fez=%)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETTT

Within one year —&FR
After one year but not more than five years ZR—FELRAF
More than five years AFRE

69,033 70,432
134,091 152,896
50,965 24,248
254,089 247,576

BREEARAT T/ \FHHRE
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AR S MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

22. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 22. ESiHE&IE ()

(CONTINUED)
As lessee ERAEEA
The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating BEKESHELZH  AEBREBAITOPAE
lease arrangements, negotiated for terms of five years with an option W BHEHRF -  BZEREIEAEA
for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be RUIRIZRE - [BRFTA BB ES R ©
renegotiated.
As at 30 June 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group had total R20184FE6 A30H & 2017412 A31H -
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ANEERET A R KEIHE MR T 5 HiR
leases falling due as follows: E|HR) B B SR ERHEEFRIBRZENAT
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RECER) (Fez&=%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Within one year —FR 52,744 37,117
After one year but not more than five years ZR—FE LR A 208,472 156,749
More than five years HFEL 325,862 297,524
587,078 491,390
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23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RS M B RR M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

23. LB AR

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
6 H30H 1231 H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEX) (FezE=z)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
Guarantees given to banks for: A TIEE 46 TIRTTHELR ¢
Mortgage facilities granted to purchasers ~ ANEE Y B SER
of the Group’s properties IRITIEIBER 2,733,701 3,205,370

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in
case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group
is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together with
any accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers
to the banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal titles
of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee periods commence
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and end after
the execution of individual purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the financial
periods in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties. The Directors
consider that in case of default on payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and
no provision is required in connection with the guarantees.

AEERETRTAAKEEMENERE
HERBEE L RAER - REEZERZHHE
R MERREEERIBENE  AKEEF
BEERRTEEERGERNB MRBER
REFEREIR - AEBHEREERK
HERYMENEZMAE - ARENRERSA
B HERRIBER B MEEERNEKET
MR R L o

AEBERMGEHELBERAREBYENE
RERTHRBEEMEHAERMES
ERERBE - EEZRA - MHERREE
REVER - AR ER T & EE@{EELMT
BRTHORBERMEFE RN
BARZERERIFLEE -

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE
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ISR S M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24. €T H
Set out below is an overview of each of the categories of financial TXHEHINAEBR2018F6 A0 HEAE Z
instruments, held by the Group as at 30 June 2018: ZHESMIT AMNERE -

Financial assets

at fair value

through other  Financial assets

comprehensive at fair value

Debt income through

instruments at BAREE profit or loss

amortised cost FTARA BAAERE
REHERA ZEBEN FABEN Total
FTEMEKIA SREE LtREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Financial assets: SREE
Long term prepayments REEITE 107,506 - - 107,506
Financial assets at fair BRREEFAER
value through HEMEE
profit or loss - - 73,403 73,403
Financial assets at fair BRRREET AL
value through other FEKERNSHEE
comprehensive income - 373,834 - 373,834
Trade and bills receivables BB ZERREE 58,752 - - 58,752
Restricted cash XBHRE 1,319,401 - - 1,319,401
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL EEY 1,024,109 - - 1,024,109
Prepayments, deposits and BEFE - £e
other receivables REA YR 721,110 - - 721,110
At 30 June 2018 201846 A30H 3,230,878 373,834 73,403 3,678,115
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHEA TR
HemeE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Financial liabilities SHas
Trade payables FERHE SERR 1,543,757
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTEIRITER M EMER 5,325,489
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals AT AE A PR FE K
Bt ERNSREE 2,929,250

At 30 June 2018 201846 H30H 9,798,496
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AR S M IS R MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24. &M T A (#8)
(CONTINUED)
2017 2017 &
Financial assets SREE

Financial assets

at fair value

through

Available- profit or loss

Loans and for-sale AT (]
receivables  financial assets EIAN - Eati) Total
ERREKHE AHREEemEE SRERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARKETT ARKTT ARETT

Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 367,653 - 367,653
Long term deposit REPBEFTUR 73,469 - = 73,469
Trade and bills receivables U E SRR REE 64,239 - - 64,239
Financial assets included STARMNTE - &e

in prepayments, deposits HEMAE

and other receivables 376,956 = = 376,956
Equity investments at fair value RAREBEFARRE

through profit or loss fEERE - - 72,298 72,298
Restricted cash XRERE 930,660 - - 930,660
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEEY 2,502,367 - = 2,502,367
At 31 December 2017 R2017412 8318 3,947,691 367,653 72,298 4,387,642
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I RARS M RR M

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

24. ®M T R (&)

(CONTINUED)
2017 (continued) 2017 £ (£&)
Financial liabilities cRBeE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BB AT =
oA
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade payables BB SRR 1,747,904
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals AT AE MR FE K
EEtERNERAE 614,823
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTER RE M AR 4,559,419
At 31 December 2017 RK20174F12 431 H 6,922,146

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk, and bunker price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The condensed consolidated interim financial information does not
include all financial risk management information and disclosures
required in the annual consolidated financial statements, and
should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

There have been no changes in the risk management department
since the year end or in any risk management policies.

Liquidity risk

Compared to the year end, there was no material change in the
contractual undiscounted cash out flows for financial liabilities.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair values

Set out below is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair
values of financial instruments as at 30 June 2018 and 31 December

AR S MR R M

As at 30 June 2018 720184 6 A 30 H

24. @« T R (&)

REE

I

K201846 A30HK2017F 12 A31 A&
BTAREEREAABEMLREI TN

2017:
Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE ANREE
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
20186 H30H 20174 12H31H 2018%6H30H 2017412A31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT ARBTR ARETFTT
Interest-bearing bank and ST EERTT
other borrowings ER LA AR 5,325,489 4,559,419 4,350,672 4,451 172

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As the investments did not have a quoted market price in an active
market, the fair values of unlisted financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income have been estimated using
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
approximates their carrying amount.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or
disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in an active market (that are
unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 —  Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable)

BRAREBEFAHMGZEKRED
THEE

HRZERERG AR S 2 ™5 RE
FEMRAABEFAEMBEZHAKENS
BEENAABECRABRRARRER
(BRI R AR I 4 7 B8R 2% 1O T 355 (B AR 3l 1) 2
BE ARRAEERR BRAABERA
Hp2HMRENEREENAABEREE
ARE(EATI -

[REERE
%E@ﬁiﬂiﬁ&%@ﬁ%@ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@@lﬁ
RARBEREADE - T
RE AR EEFEERENS A ”‘Eﬁﬂ’]ﬁ
EERBAMETE
F—R— ﬁﬂéﬁi‘%% R 5
SRE CREHE)
Fof— HEDEHTERLMEERE

RN REBEFEEEATE
HNRESREA)

REEERBRAT T/ \FhHRE
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

24. ®M T R (&)

[AEERE (&)

Level 3 —  Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input F=R— FHEAEHRTATERAAE
that is significant to the fair value measurement is B 2B EATENRESZR
unobservable) A

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of THEEBINAEFESBRTENALBEASE

the Group’s financial instruments: 1%

Assets measured at fair value: BAREBHETENEE

As at 30 June 2018 R2018 46 A30 A

Fair value measurement using
AREEFEFARLE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SRS BAH BRFA
HwE BRYE BRYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
F—& F-R E=H st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®T T
Equity investments at fair RAREERA
value through profit or loss BRI E 73,403 - - 73,403
Financial assets at BRAREERA
fair value through other Hib 2 mEmias
comprehensive income NEmEE - - 373,834 373,834
73,403 - 373,834 447,237
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 30 June 2017

AR S I R MR

As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

24. &M T R (&)

DREERE (&)
BAREEHBEEE (&)

R2017 %6 A30 H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFEMAAA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

JE PR T BAA] BANA

wE BRER BRERg
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E— B FE=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARBFIT ARBFT

Equity investments at fair RAREERA

value through profit or loss BamrE=EE 422 - - 422

All the above financial assets and liabilities had Level 2 input other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income which had
Level 1and Level 3 input respectively.

ELtiieREENABRABE _AH
A ERAABEFABRNEBEER
BE-RBAREAABEFARMBEE
W e BmEEABE=RBARI -
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As at 30 June 2018 7201846 A30H

25. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING

26

PERIOD

On 11 January 2017, Zhong An Shenglong, an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, proposed acquisition of 42.5%
of the equity interests in Zhejiang Xinnongdu Industrial Corporation
Limited (“XND”) comprising RMB327 million cash consideration
and RMB353 million share consideration settled by the allotment
and issue share by the Company. On 21 August 2017, Zhong An
Shenglong entered into an equity transfer agreement to acquire
19.85% of the equity interests in XND at a cash consideration
of RMB327 million and the Company has not yet appointed
any representative to the board of XND. As at 30 June 2018,
the directors of the Company consider the remaining 22.65%
equity interests transaction is not yet completed and it is subject
to finalisation of certain terms and conditions of the transaction
agreement.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM
CONDENSED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The interim condensed financial information was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 23 August 2018.
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25. EHHEER

R2017F1 A118 - ARRIEEIEZEMH
BARRLREEZWENITESEES
RAR([RE]) 22AEZ42.5% B
ERARRBE B E MEBEITIRG ENHARE
R7TEETHERERARKISZEE LK
PRE - R2017F8 A21 8 » RELBEERT
7 PR AR 175 s DA MK B 3T R 1 19.85% R AR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, to the best knowledge of the Company, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(1) Long positions in Shares of the Company

Number of Shares held and nature of interest in the Company:

Other Information

Hb&E#

ﬁ&

FETRARRAE
b

MR20185 6 A30 R - IBARGIFAA - AARIESE
NEBITBRABRAR R REMBE LR (REFR
HAE DI ([ B 5 R EE GG ) EXVEBFTE 2 BE)
2 - BRI REEEEE BT ABREES
NMERE GBI 53521617 B 2 B st 2 (i ss %k
B BKIE ETRRIMT SR E BT AE BT
BHERGZETRI([BESFA ) BSTHAEAR
NAI LB 2 S AR IT

(1) RAERARBHEFR

RARBIFAHBRNEE Mgt E

Number and Approximate
Capacity and class of percentage Long/Short
Name of Director nature of interest securities held of interest position
BEERS SO RESENE PR 8E RER BByt ®RR
Mr. Shi Kancheng Interest of controlled 3,262,411,200 shares of HK$0.1 56.08% Long
MR ST corporation (Note) each in the capital of the HE

SR bAE S (Aat)

Company

RATRARFREEO BT
3,262,411,200 M 15

Note: These shares are held by Whole Good Management Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is solely and beneficially owned by Mr

Shi Kancheng. Mr Shi Kancheng is the sole director of Whole Good
Management Limited.

Htat © R 15 1 Whole Good Management Limited
BAE HE2PEBTRATEHMERMA L
EESBA © MK 5t £ AWhole Good
Management Limited #J M — & = o

BREEARAT T \FHHRE
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Hp&#

(2) Long positions in underlying shares of the (2) RAXQTHBERBHIETAE :

Company:
Number of Approximate
Capacity and underlying percentage of
Name of Director nature of interest Shares held the Company’s
(Note) issued share capital
FEHEROEE EARDBE BT
EEpnE SO RERNE (Hiz) RAEMAOT S
Mr Shi Kancheng Beneficial owner 10,367,440 0.18
MK S A4 BmlEA A
Ms Shen Tiaojuan Beneficial owner 5,283,720 0.09
RS BEmlEA A
Mr Zhang Jiangang Beneficial owner 4,843,410 0.08
SRER M SE A4 EmEAA
Mr Jin Jianrong Beneficial owner 3,722,480 0.06
DRELE EmEAA
Professor Pei Ker Wei Beneficial owner 1,320,930 0.02
BB ERfEBA
Dr Loke Yu Beneficial owner 1,320,930 0.02
S L ERBEBA
Note: These represent the number of Shares which will be allotted and issued KiaF - ABRBRIEAARR 2009 F 5 A 15 H A
to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the share options granted BRESENSESELNERERTEM
to each of them pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the RS EEFLRERBITHRNOEE -
Company on 15 May 2009.
Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors M EXHEEES - R2018E6A30H -
and chief executives of the Company had or were deemed under the AATHMEERFETHA B BREARA
SFO to have any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying TR HARESAE (B &5 N EAE S S XV I
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated Fits > M) 2 I8 - MRS R EEEE
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded BIEDABIEZA R HE LG E 352 15178
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, BRI ARERSAR - SR IESEST
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange RIZBSB{TRHE RN T KR T2 (A fEzsk
pursuant to the Model Code. KA o
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(3) Long positions in shares of the associated
corporation

Number of shares held and nature of interest in CNC, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, whose shares are listed on the

Other Information

Hib &

(3) REBELTRBNER

RARRIERE KB R R P BT (AR
MR P £ ) FRFA D 8L B R a 1t

Stock Exchange: &
Number and Approximate
Capacity and class of percentage Long/Short
Name of Director nature of interest securities held of interest position
FiEES
EEpE SO RESENE BE REH RSN #RE
Mr. Shi Kancheng Interest of controlled 31,308,594 shares of HK$0.1 1.70% Long
MR S A corporation (Note) each in the capital of CNC e

Bz (M) mp BT T AR A (B
0.1%87T.2 31,303,594 f& 19

Note: These shares are held by Whole Good Management Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is solely and beneficially owned by Mr
Shi Kancheng. Mr Shi Kancheng is the sole director of Whole Good
Management Limited.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Chief Executive’s
interests in securities of the Company”, at no time during the period under
review were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted
to any Director or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company, its
holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Htat - IZR{S B Whole Good Management Limited 3 74 +
H2BORTRATZHBMALEESES © MM
X 5 4 A Whole Good Management Limited #9HE—
o

EFIMAR G RIRIEENER

REBEMARERER  SHERTENEERE
EEANEBHI8HEATHFLITERBRBEALR
) Bk (AR L b K [ B A ok B 4 o8 M 77 IS e
ZHER - MR E VEIT R ZEERN - ARA]
FEER AR - MEBARKFERMER R HES
HEREAZEMEES  FESANREBH18
BA TR F AR ER A EEESZ S EN -

BREEARAT T \FHHRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, to the best knowledge of the Company, the following
parties (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, as being directly
or indirectly interested or deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company:

FERRRELXFEFHER

BARRDEE - R20184E6 A30H * BARFE
EREBITHABI  ARAIRIBEZESNHER
BIE336IEFE 2 B MATRcs:  RBRITHER
NE > ERESHERER R AEEAEAARE B
TR AR 5% s A ERERTR 2 AT ¢

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued Long/Short
Name Capacity shares held share capital Position
RAT D RIT
=r g4 FERGEE BRABHNE DL 73
Whole Good Management Limited Beneficial owner 3,262,411,200 56.08% Long
(“Whole Good”) (Note 1) (H#it 1) BEniBA a5
Haitong International Credit Person having a 3,025,052,960 52.00% Long
Company Limited (‘HT Credit”) security interest e
(Note 2) (ff7#2) in Shares
BEEMER AL
Citigroup Inc. Person having a 454,401,000 7.81% Long
security interest e
in shares
FEAMESAL
Interest of controlled 14,057,000 0.24% Long
corporation e
Rt EEE R 57,000 0.00% Short
A
Approved lending agent 62,820,831 1.08% Long
AT HE e e
ICBC International Asset Investment manager 468,401,000 8.05% Long
Management Limited LB e
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Notes:

(1) Whole Good is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Shi Kancheng, its sole director.
Mr Shi is the the Chairman, an executive director and the chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr Shi is deemed or taken to be interested in the 3,262,411,200
Shares held by Whole Good by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

2) The 3,025,052,960 Shares were pledged by Whole Good to HT Credit. HT Credit
is wholly held or controlled by Haitong International Finance Company Limited
(‘HTFC”), which is wholly held or controlled by Haitong International (BVI) Limited
(“HTIBVI”) and, in turn, wholly held or controlled by Haitong International Securities
Group Limited (“HTISG”). HTISG is 61.77% owned or controlled by Haitong
International Holdings Limited (“HTIH") which, in turn, is wholly owned or controlled
by Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. (‘HTSC”). HTFC, HTIBVI, HTISG, HTIH and HTSC
are deemed or taken to be interested in the security interest in the 3,025,052,960
Shares held by HT Credit by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, no person, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 May 2009 (the
“Scheme”) for its eligible participants (the “Grantees”).

Upon approval by shareholders by ordinary resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) on 23 September 2013, the total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme was refreshed and increased to 236,763,540 shares which are
equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
the EGM.

There was no change in any terms of the Share Option Scheme during
the six months ended 30 June 2018. The details of the terms of the Share
Option Scheme have been disclosed in the 2017 annual report.

The following table discloses details of the share options (the “Options”)
granted under the Scheme held by employees (including Directors) and
non-employees, and movement in such holdings during the six months
ended 30 June 2018.

Other Information

Hib &

Bret

©) Whole Good HEM—EEEMKLELERERE
B BIMKREEBARRRERE  HITEERBEENT
B RBEEALBERFIEXVE  EEERE AN
E1ERWhole Good # #)3,262,411,2000% 1% 15 7
GRER -

©) Whole Good [RHT Creditif ##3,025,052,960 &
f%1 o HT Credit F1Haitong International Finance
Company ([HTFC )2 & #8 si% | - HTFCHHaitong
International (BVI) Limited ([HTIBVI]) 2&#Aski%
#ll * HTIBVI f1 Haitong International Securities Group
Limited (THTISG ) 2 &+ B 534l  HTISG 1 Haitong
International Holdings Limited ([ HTIH ) %% 61.77% 3k
225 » fHTIHFHaitong Securities Co., Ltd. ((HTSCJ)
2ER/FBAIIE - BRIBEFSF RIS ROGIEXVE -
HTFC “HTIBVI * HTISG * HTIH & HTSC #4% &3k & {E
FAHT Credit #5745 ) 3,025,052,960 A A7 7 2 B 1

B EXCATIREEE SN 1201846 A30H © MET
AT (RRARIHEEREBITHABRIN RAE
A RIRI B R AR R (5 R B B R AMRIERE 5 R 8P
E&PIE336I5REFENE LM ERIAR -

R Bz 5T 2

AATR20094 5 A 15 H AR ERL8E ([ EF
A D RMEERETE ([5T81) -

ERER2013F 923 BT 2 REF I AKE
(IBRREAAE]) EBEATEIERIEE R
BEREREI TR 2 BTS2 R B3
2T B # 1% 236,763,540 % A% 15 - BIARZE AR
NARBRRERAEE B 2B BITRN 10% °

HZE2018F6 A30H IENMA - BRESTE 2
EHERILEEE) - BIRETEERZFBER
2017 FEFEFRAIEFE -

TREBREE (REES) MEREFERETE
e ERE ((BRE]) FIBEREZE2018F6 A
0B IEAEARFEEEE) -

BREEARAT T \FHHRE
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Other Information

HipE R
Number of Number of  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 30 June Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2018 exercised lapsed 2018  Options granted period HKS per share
BRETRE
R2018%F R2018%F BRET
1A1H 217§ BES: 6A30A (Note 4)
ZHENR HATE  BREHE  BREZE AT R A8 figcdil (Hi#4)
Category 1: Directors
F1H:EF
Shi Kancheng 5,767,440 - - 5,767,440 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
HEARAY 2009%7A9A (1)
4,600,000 _ 4,600,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 0.93
201141 A22H 21 January 2021
0141 R2RE
2021F1A21H
(Note 2)
(Hi#2)
10,367,440 - - 10,367,440
Shen Tiaojuan 2,883,720 - - 2,883,720 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
L 20097 A9H (1)
2,400,000 B B 2,400,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
201141 A22H 21 January 2021
20141 A2BE
202151 A21H
(Note 2)
(Hizt2)
5,283,720 5,283,720
Zhang Jiangang 2,643,410 - - 2,643,410 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
REH 2009%7A9H (1)
2,200,000 _ B 2,200,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
20111221 21 January 2021
20141 A2BE
2021F1A21H
(Note 2)
(Hist2)
4,843,410 4,843,410
Jin Jianrong 1,922,480 1,922,480 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
E 2009%7A9H (Hrit1)
1,800,000 1,800,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
201141 4220 21 January 2021
201451 A22R%
2021F1R21H
(Note 2)
(Hz#2)

3,722,480
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Hp&#

Number of Number of  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 30 June Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2018 exercised lapsed 2018  Options granted period HKS per share
BRETRE
R2018%F R2018%F SRET
1A1H 21T# B3 6A30H (Note 4)
ZEENR HATE W BREHE  BREZE AT R AH TR (Hi#4)
Professor Pei Ker Wei 720,930 720,930 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
ARBYE 200947 A98 (Hrst1)
600,000 600,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 0.93
2011F1 /228 21 January 2021
2014F1R 2202
2021F1R21H
(Note 2)
(Hz#2)
1,320,930 1,320,930
Dr. Loke Yu 720,930 - - 720,930 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
BEmiEL 2009%7A9H (1)
600,000 - - 600,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 0.93
20111228 21 January 2021
20141 A2BE
202151 /216
(Note 2)
(iz#2)
1,320,930 1,320,930
26,858,910 26,858,910
Category 2: Employees 17,062,010 (2,403,100) 14,658,910 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
g2 B8 2009%7A9H (1)
17,200,000 (4,200,000) 13,000,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
201141 7220 21 January 2021
201451 A2BE
202151 A21H
(Note 2)
(Hi#2)
34,262,010 (6,603,100) 27,658,910
Category 3: Suppliers of 4,806,200 (2,408,100) 2,403,100 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
goods or services 20097 A9H (1)
34 BRNRE 74,000,000 (7,000,000) 67,000,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
R 201141 A22H 21 January 2021
2014F1R22H%
2021F1A21H
(Note 2)
(Hiz2)
(9,408,100) 69,403,100

78,806,200
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Other Information

HipE R
Number of Number of  Outstanding at Exercise price
Outstanding at Options Options 30 June Date of Exercise of Option
Name of participants 1 January 2018 exercised lapsed 2018  Options granted period HKS per share
BRETRE
R2018%F R2018%F BRET
1A1H 217§ BES: 6A30A (Note 4)
ZHENR HATE  BREHE  BREZE AT R A8 figcdil (Hi#4)
Category 4: Others 35,806,202 - - 35,806,202 9 July 2009 (Note 1) 1.29
F4E - Hiy 2009%7A9A (1)
29,200,000 - - 29,200,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 to 093
20111 228 21 January 2021
2014F1R22H%
202151 H21H
(Note 2)
(Hz2)
54,000,000 (3,000,000 51,000,000 10 July 2013 10 July 2013 to 0.73
201374 10R 9 July 2023
2013F7H10RZE
202367 A9H
(Note 3)
(H#3)
119,006,202 (3,000,000 116,006,202
Total 258,933,322 (3,000,000)  (16,006,200) 239,927,122
et
Notes: Hiat -
1. The Options may be exercisable at any time during the period from 9 July 2009 to 1. ZERBAER] B 2009F 7 A9 BARE201947 A8H

8 July 2019 (the “Option Period”) provided that the maximum number of Options
which each Grantee is entitled to exercise shall not exceed:

(@)

84  Zhong An Real Estate Limited

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the expiry
of the first anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before
the second anniversary of the date of grant;

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the
second anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the
third anniversary of the date of grant;

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the third
anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the fourth
anniversary of the date of grant;

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the fourth
anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant; and

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the fifth

anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the sixth
anniversary of the date of grant.
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2. On 22 January 2011, the Company had granted 80,000,000 Options which may be
exercisable after three years from the date of grant (the “Lock-in Period”) provided
that the Grantee has achieved the prescribed performance target during the Lock-
in Period and has passed the Company’s assessment, and be exercisable before
the expiry of the Option Period on 21 January 2021. The closing price of the Share
immediately before the date of granting the Options was HK$1.85 per share.

3. On 10 July 2013, the Company had granted 78,000,000 Options which may be
exercisable between 10 July 2013 and 9 July 2023. The closing price of the Share
immediately before the date of granting the Options was HK$1.43 per share.

4. The exercise price of the Options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. As such,
such adjustments were made as a result of the bonus issue completed on 12
October 2017. Details of the bonus issue were disclosed in the circular dated 8
September 2017 and the adjustments made to the outstanding Options were
disclosed in the announcement dated 12 October 2017 of the Company.

The Company’s subsidiary, CNC, adopted a share option scheme on 20
May 2015 (the “CNC Scheme”) for its eligible participants, and no share
option has been granted since its adoption.

As at 30 June 2018, the total number of CNC shares available for issue by
CNC under the CNC Scheme was 173,800,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the Director’s
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Following specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors confirmed with
the Company that they had complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code during the period under review and its code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions.
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1.43%7T °
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1282 AEEEARBITE M ARITERRENSH
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Other Information

Hp&#

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF
INTERIM RESULTS

The Company has set up an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and
adopted the terms of reference that complied with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr Loke Yu. The
other members are Professor Pei Ker Wei and Mr Zhang Huagiao. The
Audit Committee comprises all of the three independent non-executive
Directors. The condensed consolidated interim financial information for the
period under review has not been audited but has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee and the Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Ms Shen Li, a non-executive Director, was appointed as an executive
director of Value Convergence Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 2 March 2018.

Dr Loke Yu, an independent non-executive Director, resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Winfair Investment Company Limited
on 3 April 2018. Dr Loke Yu was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 6 June 2018.
On 6 August 2018, Dr Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Shenzhou Space Park Group Limited (formerly known as China
Household Holdings Limited).

Mr Zhang Huagiao, an independent non-executive Director, resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Yancoal Australia Limited,
a company listed on the ASX, on 31 Januray 2018; resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Sinopec Qilfield Service Corporation
on 28 March 2018; and resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited on 30 May 2018.

Ms Wang Shuiyun, an executive Director, was appointed as Vice
Chairman, members of the nomination committee and governance
committee of the Company, and resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 23 August 2018.

Mr Zhang Jiangang, an executive Director, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 23 August 2018.

Mr Jin Jianrong, an executive Director, was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 23 August 2018.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Company purchased
a total of 29,206,000 Shares at an aggregate purchase price before
expenses of HK$17,086,790.02 on the Stock Exchange. Details of the
purchases of such Shares were as follows:

Other Information

Hib &

REE -  HERROFLAFME
HEF

H Z=2018F6 A30H 1E /N @ A - AR AR
T HTEEE A $£29,206,000/% 1D 0 X A
17,086,790.0278 7T - BRABEZER M 251510
—|T :

Number Aggregate

of Shares Price per Share purchase

Month of purchase purchased Highest Lowest price

(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

 SREK

BEAH BERMEHE BS B BEEE

(&) (&) (&)

March 21,992,000 0.6700 0.6000 13,982,356.85
3A

June 7,214,000 0.4500 0.4100 3,104,433.17
6H

All the 29,206,000 purchased Shares were cancelled as at the date of this
report. The above repurchases were effected by the Directors pursuant
to the mandate from shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders
as a whole in enhancing the net assets and earnings per Share. Save
as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company
during the period under review.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
for the six months ended 30 June 2018.

FT 7 29,206,000 i B & B % 10 B A 43R 5 B BR1T
FERES o FlIER M ESRIBERES THR
EHET BEEBBRIESFEERTRAET/FELE
BRZHE - BREXFEEEN REBEFEN -
RARSKETMMBARTEEE - HENKEE
KA RRIER ETES -

M i FrigFEE SN - i Z= 201846 A 30 A 1L/~ &
B RABSKETMHEBARMEREES - HExR
BEEIARA R FHES o

BREEARAT T \FHHRE
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

HERERHHEENYE

Land Cost
per sq.m. % of interest
(RMB)  Land Cost attributable Site Area
BEEE  (RMB'000) tothe Group (sq.m,)  Project GFA*
Project City/district Location Project type (\R¥n/  1hERE  KEEEE wEEE  EREEE
ERER i/ B I ERH) NERENE ¥rK)  (AR®TR) BENEAM (TA%) [N
Zhejiang Province
HiIE
1 Landscape Bay Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Gentre of new district Residential 485 145,367 92.6% 215,334 300,012
2hE iUl /& i Tier 2 cly iz
i
2 Hidden Dragon Bay Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Centre of new district Residential/retail/office 1,491 360,360 64.0% 89,178 241,695
R fil /Al inTer 2cly /55D
L
3 Huifeng Plaza (A) Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Gentre of new dlistrict Residential 4114 280,671 90.0% 21497 68,220
(inclucing White Horse fiM,/& in Tier 2 city izd
Palace) ZEHERL
ELES(ET 205ER)
4 Huifeng Plaza (B) Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Centre of new dlistrict Commercial 679 8,500 90.0% 11,340 12,520
ESRA(BR) fifh /il i Tir 2oty :
T
5 Phase A, Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Commercial 269 215,246 69.2% 92,610 798,79
International Office Centre /2Ll growth potential 7
ERHAT LA “GeEkR
6 Phase B&C, Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Commercial 458 502,512 69.2% 207,390 1,098,065
Interational Office Centre /&Ll growth potenti 7
ERHATLBCH —GaEk
7 White Horse Manor Xiaoheshan, Hangzhou ~ Tier 2 city with high Residential 2,259 550,000 90.0% 145,265 243,497
B M/l growth potental frz
“5EER
8 Qiandao Lake Hotel Qiaodao Lake, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high Residential/hotel 4739 20,747 69.2% 119,398 46,580
TEHER i/ TeH growt potentia [tz /B
“GeER
9 Ideal Bay Yuhang, Hangzhou Town centre of T 2¢lty  Residentialfretal 1,648 834,000 45.9% 158,743 538,856
mee i/ %8 T /%
10 Chaoyang No. 8 Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 ¢ty Residential/retall 3,696 736,390 90%/62.2% 46,703 199,224
(including Chaoyang Yinzuo) 1M /Ll ZEBEERD fre/EE
H58% (RHERE)
11 College Sauare Yuhang, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residentialetal 1,328 269,380 90.0% 52,359 195,293
2EE M/ i growth potental fi=/5%
“Geik
12 Xii I\{ew\City Xihu District, Hangzhou  Town centre of Tier 2cfty ~ Commerciel 3,371 281,100 69.2% 39,703 83,391
EZ i/ EAE T Bx
13 Gentle Mansion Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Centre of new dlistrict Residential 5,863 673,000 21.6% 57,304 114,788
ZiE M /AL i Tier 2 ciy i€
i
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FEBRRRHHEENWE

Land Bank (sq. m.)
THRE(TAR)

Development Phases

RELE:

Types
REME

Completed Under  Hold for future ~ Residential &
Total GFA* forsale® development®  development® Facilities |

LREmR’ BIRE FRC  BHARRRS  HERER

Hotel Il
BEN

Commercial &
Office lll
BERBAN

Ningwei Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

HIENTELEZEE

Wenxing Road, Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

HIEATELEREARAR

Yucai Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

RN TRLEETH

Yucai Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

AN TRLEETH

Qianjiang Century Town, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Znejiang Province
FIaATRLER TR

Qianjiang Century Town, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
FIAATRLER TR

Liuhe Road, Xianiin Town, Yuhang District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

HTERNREREENE

Southwest of Qiandachu Town, Chunan,
Hangzhou, Znejiang Province

HTRNERTERERE

Yuhang Economic Development Zone, Hangzhou,
Zhejing Province
FLANRTEERER

Shushan Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejieng Province
mIemAmELESLLE

Future Hi-Tech Ctty, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

HTERNTRTEARRES

Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

HTERATENR

Chengxiang Unit, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Znjang Province -
FLaTATRLEARER

6,242 6,242 - - 3,659

81,829 81829 - - 58,267

68,220 - 68,220 68,220

12,520 - - 12,520 -

718,597 247,798 470,799 223117

1,098,065 - 1,098,065 1,098,065

9,673 9,673 - - 3,674

46,580 3,115 11,466 - 11,466

42,900 42,900 - - 34,142

50,228 50,228 - - -

195,203 - 195,203 - 181,662

83,391 - 83,391 - 83,391

114,788 - 114,788 - 114,788

101,500

3,115

REFEERRRAR

2,583

23,562

12,520

393,920

5,999

8,758

50,228

13,631
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BERRRHEENWHE

Land Cost
per sq.m. % of interest
(RMB)  Land Cost attributable Site Area
BEEE  (RMB'000) tothe Group (sq.m,)  Project GFA*
Project City/district Location Project type (\R¥n/  1hERE  KEEEE wEEE  EREEE
ERER i/ B I ERH) NERENE ¥rK)  (AR®TR) BENEAM (TA%) [N
14 Xixi Manhattan Yuhang, Hangzhou Town centre of Tier 2 ity Commercial 34 37470 31.7% 24534 109,998
iA=L /& ZBBERD [
15 Onshore Blue Mountain Yuhang, Hangzhou Town centre of Teer 2¢ity ~ Residential 5,603 689,939 90.0% 65,796 123,140
FLEN it/ A ZHEERD frx
16 Beverley Hills Project Qlaodao Lake, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high Residential 5,088 160,000 90.0% 89,991 28,131
HEFHES i/ TeH growth potentl fix
“Geik
17 Xinnongdu Project Hangzhou, efc. Tier 2 city with high Residential/commercial 573 679,9% 124% 991,736 1,187,131
HiE8Es e growth potental frx/E%
“HEER
18 Nan Hu Ming Yue Yuhang, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential 1,172 400,000 59.9% 121,900 341,220
(Xin Hua Yo M/ & growt potenti frz
EHEA(BEE) —hRER
19 Lin'an Tuankou Project Lin'an, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Commercial 711 40,000 69.2% 37,500 56,250
ERROEE i/ &% growth potentl %
“Geik
20 Lin‘an Jinnan Project Lin'an, Hangzhou Tier 2 city with high Residential 5,546 1,169,000 200% 59,600 210,800
T /% goh potentiel [z
“HEER
Subtotal for Hangzhou 1,374 8,243,676 2,653,966 5,997,606
bt
21 Dragon Bay Yuyao, Ningbo Town cenfre of Teer 2¢ity ~ Residentia 8,892 1,750,013 90.0% 330,136 196,809
i B5 /A0 e ji£3
22 Jade Mansion Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Teer 2¢ty ~ Residentia 3,804 1,113,764 93.0% 271,458 292,807
SERE 2 /20 T fix
23 Times Square (Phase | Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier 2cty -~ Commercialhotel 1,154 362,640 62.2% 65,159 305,473
BRESH /20 T B%/BE
24 Times Square (Phase Il Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier 2 clty F{esidentja\/ofﬁce/hotel 1,080 332,760 93%/64.3% 71,519 322,912
BRESZH 25 /45 ZBEERL [/ B0/ EE
2 Zhong An Landscape Cixi, Ningbo Tier 2 city with high Residential/office/ 467 238080 90%/62.2% 197,605 510,125
Garden, Cix =it /EE growth potentia commercil
FRUKGE —BRER ftx/578/%%
Subtotal for Ningbo 2,32 3,787,248 935,926 1,628,126
BRG
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FEBRRRHHEENWE

Land Bank (sq. m.)

THRE(TAR)
Development Phases Types
BRER REME

Completed Under  Hold for future ~ Residential & Commercial &
Address Total GFA* forsale® development®  development® Facilities | Hotel Office Il
it BESERE BRIHE" FERC  BHARERS  fAZRER BEI BERBLN
Intersection of (Gaojiao Road and Changyu Road 109,998 - 109,998 - 109,998 - -
BHBARERERND
Xian Lin Town, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, 123,140 - - 123,140 123,140 - -

Zhejinag Province

HTERATRER

West of Taoyuan Island, Qiandao Lake, Chunan County, 28,131 - - 28,131 28,131 - -
Hangzhou, Znejiang Province

HTENERTERRRER

Hangzhou/Quzhou/Zhuj/Changxing 1,081,148 312,373 316,488 452,287 - - 1,081,148
i/ #E/ KRR
Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 341,220 341,220 341,220

HIERNTRRE

Lin'an District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 56,250 56,250 56,250
MIEmAmERE

Lin‘an District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 210,800 210,800 210,800
FIAfNTERE

4,479,013 786,158 1,110,443 2,582,412 2,693,799 192,865 1,592,350
Xinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 24,026 24,026 - - 24,026 - -
FIAAKTHELH
Kinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 95,679 4125 52,954 - 95,679 - -
FIARKTHRLR
Kinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 276,844 276,844 - - 114,671 20,624 141,649
IEARmATRL R
Xinjian North Fioad, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 114,664 114,664 - - 4544 71,706 38,414
IARTATRL R
Longshan New Town, Binghai District, 367,114 36,404 350,710 - 227,604 - 159,510
Cidong, Cixi, Zheflang Province
FIEREEREBERLI
898,327 494,663 403,664 - 466,524 92,330 339,473
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BERRRHEENWHE

Land Cost
per sq.m. % of interest
(RMB)  Land Cost attributable Site Area
BEEE  (RMB'000) tothe Group (sq.m,)  Project GFA*
Project City/district Location Project type (\R¥n/  1hERE  KEEEE wEEE  EREEE
FRER fim /B WESR NEREME ¥r%)  (AR¥TR) EENES (EAR) HE*
26 Xiangshuwan Lishui Tier 2 city with high Residential 5290 1,364,000 90.0% 11589000 257,859.00
Eiifg Bk growth potental frz
—BRER
Subtotal for Lishui 5,290 1,364,000 115,890 257,859
Bkt
Subtotal for Zhejiang 1699 13,304,924 3,705,782 7,883,592
E Rt
Anhui Province
7HE
21 (C1G2, Green Harbour Hefei, Anhui Gentre of new dlistrict Residential 266 11,645 84.2% 64,376 43,718
HEAECIC 28/ 6 i Tier 2 ciy fiz
AR
28 Phase 2, Green Harbour Hefel, Anhui Centre of new district Residential 316 40,708 84.2% 269,000 108,200
BEsEE"H RH/AE i Tier 2oty fiz
it
29 Phases 3-6, Green Harbour ~ Hefel, Anhui Gentre of new district Residential 532 298,100 84.2% 1,395,000 560,300
REBERIZ6H 28/8% in T 2oty 2
AR
Subtotal for Hefei 492 350,453 1,728,376 712,218
Gl
30 Phase 2 South, Vancouver City - Huaibei, Anhui Gentre of new district Residential 3 3483 100.0% 151,247 100,771
ot 2/ i Ter ity 22
=&AL
31 Phase 2 North, Vancouver City  Huaiei, Anhui Centre of new district Residential K 2,554 100.0% 84,330 75,027
BTER 8 T/ i Tier 3oty [r=
ZHaL
32 Phase 3A, Vancouver Gty Hualbei, Anhui Centre of new district Residential Kis 4974 100.0% 139,383 143941
RFEHEIHA 24/ inTer Sy fiz
A
33 Phase 3B-3D, Vancouver Gty Huaibei, Anhui Gentre of new dlistrict Residential 36 10,703 100.0% 214,217 300,434
BFEHEBEDS 2/ i Ter 3.ty e
=&AL
34 Phase 4 North, Vancouver City Huaiei, Anhui Centre of new dlistrict Residential 35 10,286 100.0% 296,704 297,636
BEEAE A 7/ inTier 3oty [r=
ZHaAL
3 Phase 4 South, Vancouver City - Huaibei, Anfui Centre of new district Residential U 3,863 100.0% 82,040 14,407
BAEHEHE 7/ i Ter 3.ty 2
A
36 Phase 5 North, Vancouver City - Huaibel, Anhui Gentre of new dlistrict Residential 3 2,336 100.0% 265,310 67,607
BFENES L 2/ i Ter 3.ty e
@A
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FEBRRRHHEENWE

Land Bank (sq. m.)

1ibEE (TAk)
Development Phases Types
GELE REME
Completed Under  Hold for future ~ Residential & Commercial &
Address Total GFA* forsale® development®  development® Facilities | Hotel Office Il
it BREER BRIRE BRTO  BHAREERS  GZRER EEN BEREAN
Luwen Vilage, Lishui, Znejiang Province 257,859 267,859.00 267,859.00
IR Gl i
257,859 - 257,859 - 257,859 - -
5,635,199 1,280,821 1,771,966 2,582,412 3,418,182 285,195 1,931,822
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anfui Province 5283 5283 - - 570 - 4,663
ZHEAETRABREY
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anfui Province 108,200 - - 108,200 108,200 - -
ZHEsETEARHER
Larldu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 560,300 - - 560,300 560,300 - -
ZHEAETRARREY
673,733 5,233 0 668,500 669,070 0 4,663
Renmin Road, Xiengshen District, Huaibe, Anfui Province 3,266 3,266 - - - - 3,266
ZHEELTRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 3,108 3,108 - - - 3,108
ZHERILTELEARY
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 6,173 6,173 - - - - 6,173
ZHEEL AL ARE
Renmin Road, Xiengshen District, Huaibe, Anfui Province 181,058 6,962 174,09 - 173,407 - 7,661
ZHERLTRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 2,038 2,038 - - 7 - 1,321
ZHERILTELEARY
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 114,407 - 114,407 114,407 - -
ZHEELTALEARE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 35,157 35,157 - - 35,157 - -

ZREELTALEARS

REFEERRRAR
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BERRRHEENWHE

Land Cost
per sq.m. % of interest
(RMB)  Land Cost attributable Site Area
BEEE  (RMB'000) tothe Group (sq.m,)  Project GFA*
Project City/district Location Project type (\R¥n/  1hERE  KEEEE wEEE  EREEE
ERER fim /B WESR NEREME ¥r%)  (AR¥TR) EENES (EAR) HE*
37 Phase 5 South, Vancouver ity - Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new district Residentia 3% 1228 1000% 81,511 35,621
BTEE5 8T 2/ i Tler ity frz
=L
38 Phase 6, Vancouver Ciy Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new district Residential 32 1,952 100.0% 35,386 60,708
REHIFH Zh/ inTer Sy i€
=i
39 Phase 6D, Vancouver City Huaibei, Anhui Gentre of new district Hotel 30 2,025 62.2% 60,768 67,061
BHEHE6HD 2/ i Tier 3oty BE
=&AL
40 Phase 7, Vancouver City Huaioei, Anhui Gentre of new dlistrict Residential 3 4721 100.0% 80,291 136,772
ATENETH R/ i Ter ity frz
=L
4 Southwest of Times Square, ~ Hualbei, Anhui Centre of new district Residential -
Vancouer Gty T/ i Tier 3oty fiz
REEN (BRESER) =i
Y Northeast of Times Square, ~ Huaioei, Anhui Centre of new district Residential 3 2,862 100.0% 87,072 82,815
Vancouer Gy 2/ i Tier 3 ciy iz
REFEN (BREBEL) @A
Subtotal of Huaibei 34 50,993 1,638,758 1,482,700
N
Subtotal of Anhui 183 401,446 3,367,135 2,194,918
RENG
Jiangsu
L
4 Xuzhou Wanxiang Project Xuzhou, Jiangsu Centre of Tier 3 City Commercial 320 180,000 31.7% 154,802 562,371
iRINESER &/ =HERL i
Tianjin
P-4
4 Tianjn A Tianjin Centre gf Tier 1 ity Residential 2,382 125,000 90.0% 17,282 52417
REBRA Py —Bama iz
Overseas
55
45 Amber Rise Vancouver, British Columbia Tier 1 New City Residential 11,206 86,497 100.0% 15,715 7,719
RETRLE/BE R iz
Total 1326 14,187,867 7,260,715 10,701,076*
&t
# Total GFA= D+ @ +Q@ =1 + 1l + Il # BEEEE=O+Q+O@ =1+1+1I
- including contracted and not recognized completed section - BIEEFLAERN LTS
* including those with land use right and contractual interests * BIECIUS L A RIES A KR 2 Tit
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FEBRRRHHEENWE

Land Bank (sq. m.)

1ibEE (TAk)
Development Phases Types
GELE REME
Completed Under  Hold for future ~ Residential & Commercial &
Address Total GFA* forsale® development®  development® Facilities | Hotel Office Il
it BREER BRIRE BRTO  BHAREERS  GZRER EEN BEREAN
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 35,021 - - 35,021 35,021 - -
RAERILTELEARY
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 27,356 27,356 - - 1,206 - 26,150
ZHAEL AL AR
Renmin Road, Xiengshen District, Huaibe, Anfui Province 67,061 67,061 - - - 67,061 -
ZHEELTRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 136,772 - - 136,772 136,772 - -
ZHERILTELEARY
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 0 - - - - - -
ZHAEL AL AR
Renmin Road, Xiengshen District, Huaibe, Anfui Province 82,815 - - 82,815 - - 82,815
ZHEELTRLEARS
694,725 151,115 288,502 255,108 497,186 67,061 130,478
1,368,458 156,348 268,502 923,608 1,166,256 67,061 135,14
Hanfeng North Road & Xiaoxiang South Road, 562,371 562,371 562,371
Kincheng District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province
TEEGNTHIEERLE  BEE
No.72, Xiao Weidi Avenue, Hexi District, Tanjin City 52417 - 52417 52417 -
RETARE/ ERET2YE
Union Avenue, West Vancouver, Brtish Columbia 7,719 - 7,719 - 7,719 - -
REFRHTARETENREE216%
7,626,225 1,437,169+ 2,068,187 4,120,868 5,207,005 352,256 2,066,964
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Summary of Financial Information

MBENHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controling ~ ANEEEf4EE 2 AMHa T B R4S FEHRE
interests of the Group for the last five six-month periods ended 30 June, 3T A{EEZE68308 IE/5E B HAREE R EAE -
as extracted from the published interim condensed consolidated financial & & R IEIE ez I EZ & 50T -

statements.

Results E

Six-month periods ended 30 June

BZE6H30HLEAEAHH
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 5 2017 F 2016 F 20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR®TET AREBTT AR®TET

Revenue ON 1,601,499 3,171,518 1,889,749 832,151 1,002,530
Profit before tax RN 299,679 821,190 62,598 75,084 576,051

Income tax FriS i (204,088) (267,489) (28,105) (73,976) (198,978)
Profit for the period B A) 95,591 553,701 34,493 1,108 377,073
Attributable to: AT RS -

Owners of the parent [SYNCIETZEPN 59,271 430,325 24,124 (15,043) 381,724

Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A 36,320 123,376 10,369 16,151 (4,651)

95,591 553,701 34,493 1,108 377,073

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests ¥&E - 8ERIFERER

30 June

6H30H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 5 20174 2016 ¢ 20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AREBTT AR®TET AREBTT AR®TE

Total Assets BEE 27,181,949 19,928,529 21,917,857 21,505,906 18,736,551
Total Liabilities FEN=Ei= (17,933,299) (11,405,442) (14,328,327) (14,529,858) (12,213,311)
Non-controlling Interests IRV RS (1,756,762)  (1,319,919)  (1,149,625)  (1,007,000) (298,049)

7,491,888 7,203,168 6,439,905 5,969,048 6,225,191
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